
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Efficiency and Performance Sub (Finance) 
Committee 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 6 NOVEMBER 2013 

Time: 11.30am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS - WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Roger Chadwick (Chairman) 

Ray Catt (Deputy Chairman) 
Randall Anderson 
Nigel Challis 
Deputy Anthony Eskenzi 
John Fletcher 
Jamie Ingham Clark 
Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Ian Seaton 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Philippa Sewell 

tel.no.: 020 7332 1425 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 17 July 

2013. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
5. TRANSFORMATION AND EFFICIENCY BOARDS UPDATE 
 Joint report of the Deputy Town Clerk and the Chamberlain. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 13 - 22) 

 
6. CIPFA VFM INDICATORS 2011/12 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 23 - 120) 

 
7. SUPPLIES AND SERVICES AND THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 121 - 128) 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act. 
 

 For Decision 



3 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2013. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 129 - 130) 

 
12. STAFF COSTS CHARGED TO PROJECTS 
 Report of the Chamberlain.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 131 - 146) 

 
13. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB (FINANCE) COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 17 July 2013  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Efficiency and Performance Sub (Finance) Committee 
held at Guildhall, EC2 on Wednesday, 17 July 2013 at 1.45pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Roger Chadwick (Chairman) 
Ray Catt (Deputy Chairman) 
Randall Anderson 
Nigel Challis 
Deputy Anthony Eskenzi 
John Fletcher 
Jamie Ingham Clark 
Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Ian Seaton 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
 

 
Officers: 
Susan Attard - Deputy Town Clerk 

Neil Davies - Town Clerk's Department 

Daniel Hooper - Town Clerk's Department 

Matthew Pitt - Town Clerk's Department 

Chris Bilsland - Chamberlain 

Suzanne Jones - Chamberlain's Department 

Paul Nagle - Chamberlain's Department 

Paul Double - City Remembrancer 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ANY ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
The public minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2013 were approved. 
 

4. OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk setting out all 
actions that remained open following the last meeting, with updates from the 
responsible officers. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



RESOLVED - That the Improved co-ordination between Mansion House, 
Guildhall complex and the Central Criminal Court item be removed from the list 
of outstanding actions. 
 

5. TRANSFORMATION AND EFFICIENCY BOARDS UPDATE  
The Sub-Committee received a joint report of the Deputy Town Clerk and the 
Chamberlain providing updates on the work of both the Transformation and 
Efficiency Boards. 
 
In response to a Member's question, the Deputy Town Clerk responded that 
officers were examining mobile app options for the delivery of City Corporation 
services. She added that part of this process was looking at how our existing 
app offers could be rationalised and simplified for the end-user. 
 
In response to a Member's question regarding the trial of Microsoft Yammer, 
the Deputy Town Clerk responded that the City Corporation would not expend 
additional resources on a product that could be purchased as part of the 
contract renewal of for the Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement. 
 
RECEIVED. 
 

6. INTER-DEPARTMENTAL EVENTS CO-ORDINATION  
The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Remembrancer updating 
Members on steps taken to refine co-ordination between the Remembrancer's 
Office, Mansion House, the Public Relations Office and Economic Development 
Offices on event planning and delivery over the previous twelve months.  
 
Reference was made to the addition of the Department of Culture Heritage and 
Libraries to the Central Events Management Group and the need for liaison 
with others such as the Barbican and GSMD over anniversaries. In response, 
the Remembrancer stated that the work undertaken on events co-ordination 
between departments would further develop now that the Group had been 
established.  
  
The Deputy Chairman requested that a progress report be brought to the Sub-
Committee in twelve months.  
 
In response to a Member's question on the relevance of guests at City 
Corporation events, the Remembrancer added that there was a new system in 
place to ensure invitations were appropriate and that it was working well. 
 
RESOLVED: That: - 
 
i) the report be noted; 
ii) an update report be brought to the Sub-Committee at its July 2014 

meeting; and 
iii)  the Town Clerk produce a resolution for the next meeting of the 

Hospitality  Working Party. 
 
 

Page 2



7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
In response to a Member's question on the forthcoming Service Based 
Reviews, the Chamberlain responded that the Sub-Committee, along with a 
number of other Committees, including the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee 
would play roles in the review process. Members confirmed that a monthly 
report to the Finance Committee would not be desirable.  
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items. 
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

10. PP2P PROGRAMME REVIEW  
The Sub-Committee approved a report of the Chamberlain. 
 

11. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
 

 
The meeting ended at 3.17pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Matthew Pitt 
tel.no.: 020 7332 1425 
matthew.pitt@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Efficiency and Performance sub-Committee 06 November 2013 

Subject:  

Outstanding Actions 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Head of Corporate Performance and Development 

For Information 

 

Summary 

At the 18th September 2012 meeting, Members agreed to receive an updated 
schedule of outstanding actions at each meeting, with previously agreed closed 
actions removed. 
 
The attached schedule includes all actions that remained open following the 
last meeting, together with updates from the responsible officers. 
 
Members are asked to note that final reports in respect of the following two 
items are presented to today’s meeting: 
 

Value for Money analysis results of the CIPFA benchmarking of 
corporate Finance, HR, Legal and Democratic Services (item 5.1 on the 
attached schedule) 

Internal staff costs in projects (item 9.1on the attached schedule) 

In addition, the Transformation and Efficiency Boards update report includes 
additional analysis in respect of the London Councils’ performance dashboard, 
as requested by Members the last time this dashboard was reported (item 7.4 
on the attached schedule). 

An update report on Third Party Payments (item 7.5 on the attached schedule) 
is presented to today’s meeting, with a further report to follow in the New Year. 

 

 

 
Neil Davies 
Head of Corporate Performance and Development 
 
T: 020 7332 3327 
E: neil.davies@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (EPSC) - Outstanding Actions (as at 21/10/2013) 
 

 

Meeting Date and Item Action 

Officer 
responsible 

and target date 
(where 

applicable) 

Progress updates 

Priority 
(High / 

Medium / 
Low) 

 

3 Departmental report – Barbican Centre 

3.1 Report to 24/11/11 meeting: 
Item 12 

 

Barbican Centre Update 

Members were updated on 
the plans for reducing the 
Centre’s expenditure and 
increasing income. Members 
requested that the sub-
Committee be kept informed 
of any related financial 
matters as necessary. 

Chamberlain/ 
Managing 
Director of the 
Barbican Centre 

Update as 
necessary 

August 2012 – No issues requiring Member 
attention. Financial forecast for 2012/13 within 
budget. 

November 2012- No issues requiring Member 
attention.  Financial forecast for 2012/13 within 
budget. Forecasts for 2013/14 are currently being 
compiled. 

Medium 

 

4 Improved co-ordination (“Joining-up”) between Mansion House, Guildhall complex and the Central 
Criminal Court 

4.2 
Report to 17/7/13 meeting: 
Item 6 

 
Inter-Departmental Events 
Co-ordination 

Members requested a 
progress report in one year’s 
time.  

Remembrancer 

July 2014 

n/a Low 

 

P
age 7



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (EPSC) - Outstanding Actions (as at 21/10/2013) 
 

5 Central Recharges  

5.1 Report to 24/11/11 meeting: 
Item 9 
 
Chamberlain’s departmental 
recharges – Value for 
money analysis 

 

The Chamberlain to provide 
Members with further detail 
on comparative service 
delivery costs and to submit a 
report to Members to 
reconsider the issue of 
internal recharges and value 
for money 

Chamberlain 

November 2013 

February 2012 – A report was received outlining 
the difficulties in measuring the City Corporation 
against the CIPFA Public Sector Corporate 
Services Value for Money. The Financial Services 
Director stated that she was exploring other 
possibilities, including a London-wide 
benchmarking club, supported by CIPFA, to look at 
the issues instead. This was welcomed by 
Members. 

November 2012 –Data collection for the HR, Legal 
and Finance benchmarking clubs currently 
underway. Given the IS Sourcing review, the City 
will not participate in the IS benchmarking club. 
Possible benefits of participation in the Property 
Services benchmarking club currently being 
assessed. 

June 2013 – The results have been received and 
analysed, and discussed with the Comptroller and 
City Solicitor and the Director of HR. A report is 
scheduled for the November sub-Committee. 

November 2013: Report to be presented to sub-
Committee. 

Medium 

 
 
 

P
age 8



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (EPSC) - Outstanding Actions (as at 21/10/2013) 
 

7 Efficiency Board issues 

7.2 Report to 18/9/12 meeting: 
Item 5 

 

Triggers for departmental 
reporting 

Members asked for a review 
of the triggers after 6 months 
of operation 

Chamberlain 

Every meeting 

 

The triggers are reviewed at every meeting of the 
Efficiency Board and an update provided in the 
Transformation and Efficiency Board update 
reports to each sub-Committee meeting. 

Medium 

7.3 Report to 30/1/13 meeting: 
Item 5 

Triggers for departmental 
reporting: “50 Ways to 
Save” 

Members requested that 
officers review and report 
back on the incentives offered 
to staff who suggest good 
ideas through the City 
Corporation’s Staff 
Suggestion Scheme and also 
the level of uptake. 

Deputy Town 
Clerk 

November 2013 

May 2013: Members noted proposals for a full 
review of the Staff Suggestion Scheme, which 
were subsequently agreed by the Establishment 
Committee. 

September 2013: Proposals for a revised scheme 
were approved by the Performance and Strategy 
Summit Group. A detailed specification is being 
produced and software packages for suggestion 
management are being evaluated. 

Medium 

7.4 Report to 8/5/13 meeting: 
Item 5 

Transformation and 
Efficiency Boards - update 

Members requested that 
future reports on the London 
Councils performance 
dashboard include 
comparisons with previous 
quarters. 

Head of 
Corporate 
Performance and 
Development 

Quarterly 

Previous quarters’ analysis included in report to 
November sub-Committee (on 2012/13 Q4 
dashboard). 

Low 

7.5 Report to 8/5/13 meeting: 
Item 5 

Transformation and 
Efficiency Boards - update 

A report to be presented to 
the September meeting on the 
review of Third Party 
Payments. 

Chamberlain 

November 2013 

November 2013: Update report to be presented to 
sub-Committee. Results of on-going reviews to be 
reported at first meeting in 2014. 

Medium 

P
age 9



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (EPSC) - Outstanding Actions (as at 21/10/2013) 
 

 

8 Transformation Board issues 

8.1 Report to 18/9/12 meeting: 
Item 6 

 

Shared Services (City 
Corporation & City Police) 

Members noted that non-
emergency Police calls were 
being answered by the City 
Corporation’s contact centre 
and were keen to consider 
recharging options should this 
become a permanent 
arrangement. They also noted 
that any decisions to recharge 
for services should be applied 
consistently across all 
departments. 

Deputy Town 
Clerk / 
Chamberlain 

December 2013 

January 2013 (report to Police Committee): “The 
call handling pilot has been successful in both 
reducing the volume of calls received in the CoLP 
Control Room and in making significant 
improvements to the percentage of non-emergency 
calls answered within 30 seconds.  This is now 
consistently above target.  Following an initial 
evaluation of the pilot to date, options for extending 
both the volume and nature of calls the shared 
Contact Centre handle are being considered in 
light of the Force’s overall Contact Management 
Strategy.” 

June 2013 – A report is scheduled for the 
September meeting. 

July 2013 – A project board has been formed to 
progress the joining up of the City’s Contact Centre 
and Police Command Centre, following agreement 
of the key principles. The project board is due to 
meet on 16

th
 July, followed by a tactical workshop 

on 18
th
 July. 

November 2013: Report to be presented to sub-
Committee in December 2013. 

Low 

 
 

P
age 10



EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (EPSC) - Outstanding Actions (as at 21/10/2013) 
 

9 Miscellaneous 

 9.1  Report to 12/7/12 meeting: 
Item 5 

  

 Transformation and 
Efficiency Boards update  

The Chamberlain will explore 
how future finance reports 
could include a breakdown of 
internal and external staffing 
costs charged to City 
Corporation projects, 
especially where recharges 
could be made. 

Financial 
Services Director 

November 2013 

Estimated internal staff costs are now included in 
the gateway 1 and 2 template reports for City 
Corporation projects. 

July 2013 - A meeting to discuss this issue was 
held with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman on 
2
nd
 July, and a report will be presented to the 

October meeting. 

November 2013: Report to be presented to sub-
Committee. 

High 

 9.2  Report to 18/9/12 meeting: 
Item 5 

  

 Transformation and 
Efficiency Boards update 

Minutes of Transformation 
Board (TB) and Efficiency 
Board (EB) to be sent to 
selected Members for their 
information. 

Head of 
Corporate 
Performance and 
Development 

Monthly 

 

March 2013 meetings – sent 2/7/13 

April 2013 meetings – sent 2/7/13 

May 2013 meetings – sent 19/9/13 

June 2013 meetings – sent 19/9/13 

Low 

 

P
age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Efficiency and Performance sub-Committee 06 November 2013 

Subject:  

Transformation and Efficiency Boards - update 

 
 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chamberlain and Deputy Town Clerk  

For Information 

 

 
Summary 

Since the last sub-Committee meeting, the Transformation Board has met three 
times and the Efficiency Board has met twice. 

The Transformation Board has discussed corporate survey software, social media 
monitoring, website and intranet developments, and a report on inter-departmental 
demand management; and received the regular updates from the current 
programme of strategic reviews. The Board also received a presentation from the 
Head of Corporate HR and Business Services, who discussed issues such as 
organisational design and resistance to change; and has been reviewing its terms of 
reference and links to other officer groups. 

The Efficiency Board continues to monitor the achievement of efficiency savings and 
budget reductions, and the latest position is reported in Appendix 2 to this report. 
The Board has discussed the service-based reviews, performance dashboards, 
corporate performance indicators, and how it can continue to support this sub-
Committee, including by monitoring “triggers” for departmental reporting. 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to receive this update 

 
 

Main Report 

 
Background 

 
1. At its 23rd May 2011 meeting, this sub-Committee received a report describing 

the establishment of two officer boards - the Transformation Board, 
(concentrating on change management) and the Efficiency Board 
(concentrating on the achievement of savings and efficiencies). It was agreed 
that an update on the work of each Board would be provided at each meeting 
of this sub-Committee. 
 

 
Transformation Board 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



2. The following issues have been discussed at the Transformation Board, 
chaired by Susan Attard, since the last sub-Committee meeting. 

3. Updates on Strategic Reviews The Board received updates on the key 
strategic projects. Issues highlighted recently include: 

a. IS phase 3 – alternative sourcing options: The transfer of 29 full time 
staff to Agilisys took place on 1st September. The transition of 
operational services commenced from the same date, with a series of 
service and process improvement projects running throughout the first 
year. The move to ‘Infrastructure as a Service’ - also known as Cloud 
computing – is scheduled to complete in autumn 2014, and will be a 
significant step towards decommissioning the data centre in Guildhall. 
A series of planned communications using a variety of channels, will be 
used during transition, notifying and explaining service changes and 
improvements before they are implemented.. 

b. PP2P: The Finance Committee has agreed to bring the service back in 
house, with a target date of March 2014. This requires a number of 
activities to make sure that the service is stable and that there are clear 
actions to progress the maturity of the service to a level close to being 
a contender for excellence in procurement. Resources to do this are 
being established currently. Compliance with the revised processes is 
slowly improving and this will continue to be monitored and discussed 
with relevant departments as necessary. The new Head of CLPS starts 
on 4th November. Savings from the PP2P project are reported in 
Appendix 2 to this report. 

c. Strategic Finance Review: Events to formally launch the money 
dashboard, business partnering handbooks and training will be held 
during the City Corporation’s Learning and Development Week in 
October. An action plan is being developed for improving the 
underpinning data quality of CBIS information. Work is taking place on 
Budget Manager training and eLearning, incorporating business 
partnering initiatives. 

d. HR: The final staffing structure is in place, and a post implementation 
review is being conducted by the Senior Management Team. Further 
developments in the iTrent recruitment module are being piloted. 

e. Accommodation All works are projected to complete in November 
within the overall budget, subject to the approval to vire budgets 
between individual work tasks. All dates for the Chamberlain’s 
Department move from Guildhall Yard East to Guildhall North Wing and 
Walbrook Wharf have been agreed and finalised. 

4. Corporate survey software SNAP (Snap Survey Solutions) was chosen over 
seven years ago as the most appropriate and cost-effective corporate solution 
for the City Corporation for conducting surveys, since when much has 
changed in terms of technology. SNAP licences are expensive and training is 
required to use it effectively. Consequently Survey Monkey, an online survey 
tool which is cheap and easier to use has become increasingly popular with 
staff in a number of departments. A comparison of the two determined that 
Survey Monkey is now the product that best meets overall business needs, 

Page 14



offering a better user experience at lower cost. However, there are two areas - 
analysis and paper survey scanning - where SNAP is a superior product. Both 
of these are important issues for surveys with large sample sizes. The Board 
therefore agreed to conduct a survey of current SNAP users to determine 
whether either of these issues are relevant, before making a final decision 
between the two options.  

5. Monitoring of Social Media The Board considered an update report in 
relation to a six-month trial of social media monitoring by an external company 
– Socialbakers. This tool pulls together information relating to the City 
Corporation’s various social media feeds, and was chosen after comparison 
with other available software. The report noted some initial impressions from 
trial users, including the Public Relations Office. Whilst the presentation of 
information in a dashboard was useful for senior managers and officers 
running feeds, the market for this type of software has developed, meaning 
that much of the information is now available elsewhere more cheaply, and, in 
some cases, at no direct cost. The Board noted that the trial users would be 
consulted at the end of the trial period (in October) to determine the most 
cost-effective solution to use in the future.  

6. Future progress of website and intranet projects The Board received a 
report which identifies the programmes needed to realise the City’s objectives 
for these projects, maps out some of the detail, identifies staff resources and 
officers to be appointed in the future. There was detailed discussion of the 
aspirations of the programme, covering: 

o the speed of technology changes, meaning that there is no fixed ‘end 
point’ to any development; 

o options for staff consultation; and 
o the need for individual members of staff to be provided with a 

personalised intranet desktop comprising: “push” information (e.g. 
relevant news items), personal information (e.g. regarding annual 
leave), and collaboration space where staff can communicate through 
shared sites, and participate in blogs, etc. 

7. London Collaborative Efficiency Network Officers continue to attend 
meetings of the LCEN, and report back to the Board on issues discussed. The 
meeting in September included discussion of contracting and procurement 
issues relating to Public Health services, and the impact of the Care Bill (May 
2013), which will introduce a general duty for local authorities to promote 
individuals’ wellbeing. The Network also received feedback from the London 
ICT Programme, the sub-regional partnerships representing North, West, East 
and South-West London, Capital Ambition, and the London Strategic 
Procurement Board. 

8. Organisational Design The Board received a presentation from the Head of 
Corporate HR and Business Services, based on a presentation given to 
groups of international public servants visiting Guildhall. This covered a range 
of HR issues, such as  management structures and staff behaviour when 
seeking to resist change. The presentation led to a wide-ranging discussion, 
covering Board members’ personal experience of change resistant behaviour, 
the need for general ‘buy-in’ to change, the importance of communication 

Page 15



through the hierarchy, collegiate working, and how to turn negative behaviour 
to positive behaviour. 

9. Demand Management The Board considered a report relating to the effective 
management and procurement of professional and cost effective legal 
services for the City Corporation. This is one of the areas identified for review 
at the Board’s Strategic Opportunities workshop in July 2012. The report 
recognises that for the City Corporation, with its diverse and unique mix of 
functions and responsibilities, there is no single and simple solution. However, 
this issue is likely to become increasingly important as resources diminish. 
The Board accepted the recommendations in the report, which will provide a 
framework and starting point for the on-going consideration of demand 
management for legal services. These included: the drafting of a protocol to 
set broad principles for engagement with service departments; improved 
monitoring of workloads; and the development of closer working relationships 
between departments to understand current and future demand for legal 
services. Discussions have already taken place with the City Surveyor, as the 
largest user of legal services, and the detailed mechanisms will be developed 
in partnership with him to reflect the needs of the client should then be of 
wider application to other services and providers. Further detail is to be 
provided to the Board at a future meeting. 

10. Review of terms of reference In order for the Board to remain relevant and 
effective, it has been reflecting on its work to date and how it operates, and 
considering suggestions for a way forward. In discussing its role, the 
relationship with other officer groups, particularly the Chief Officers’ Group, 
the Performance and Strategy Summit Group and the Efficiency Board was 
highlighted. Work is in progress on mapping these relationships and 
determining how the Board can address the key issues of behaviour change 
and benefits realisation. 

 
Efficiency Board 

 
11. The following key issues have been discussed at the Efficiency Board, 

chaired by Chris Bilsland, since the last sub-Committee meeting. 

12. Efficiency and Performance sub-Committee At each meeting, the 
Efficiency Board discusses the support that it provides to this sub-Committee, 
including reviewing the sub-Committee’s list of outstanding items and the 
potential departmental triggers. External triggers considered by the Board 
include: 

• Police Benchmarking – following further consideration of the HMIC Value 
for Money Profiles, a report is being prepared for the Police Performance 
and Resource Management sub-Committee to propose a broad 
framework for reviewing City Police value for money. The latest draft of 
the HMIC indicators has been received and the data is being checked for 
accuracy. 

• PRO polling – the Board noted the initial results from the 2013 polling of 
key City audiences, including continued high satisfaction with the City as a 
place to live/work/run a business, and with the City Corporation as a 

Page 16



provider of services. The polling will also provide a useful source of 
evidence for the service-based reviews. A report was presented to the 
Policy and Resources Committee in October and a presentation to all 
Members is planned for December. 

• LG Inform – the Board noted a draft dashboard of indicators for all local 
authorities circulated at a recent meeting of the Local Government 
Association Improvement Board. The draft showed the City Corporation 
as a generally high cost and high performing authority. Further analysis 
will be carried out in preparation for the public release of this dashboard in 
November. 

13. Service-Based Reviews The Board discussed aspects of the service-based 
review process, including : the revised financial forecast resulting from the 
DCLG technical consultation on the Spending Review 2013; challenging the 
level of statutory and corporate services; quantifying potential savings options 
for presentation to Members, and the role that the Efficiency Board could play 
in the process. 

14. Performance Dashboard 2012-13 Q4 The Board noted the latest City of 
London performance dashboard, compiled quarterly by London Councils. This 
is attached at Appendix 1. On the dashboard, the City’s performance is shown 
in the column headed ‘value’, and by the black diamond in the column headed 
‘better performance �’. The ‘group average’ is calculated from those 
boroughs that submitted data. 
 

15. The table below summarises the City’s performance and gives a comparison 
with Q4 for 2011-12: 
 

Number of 
performance 
indicators 

Top 
quartile 

2nd 
quartile 

3rd 
quartile 

Bottom 
quartile 

n/a* Total 

Q4 2012-13 18 6 0 1 5 30 

Q4 2011-12 18 3 2 3 4 30 
*We do not submit returns where the raw data value is<10. 

 
16. This shows above-average performance for 2012-13 in 24 of the 25 indicators 

for which the City’s performance is reported (96%), an improvement on the 
same quarter in 2011-12, when 19 of 26 indicators were above average 
(73%).  
 

17. The only indicator where the City is still below average is LIS 25b – time taken 
to process “other” planning applications. Performance on this indicator 
continues to be monitored by the Departmental Management Team; analysis 
showing that the delay is mainly due to the impact of negotiations with 
applicants to secure approval of the application, which is the department’s key 
aim. During 2012-13, 98% of initial applications were approved, significantly 
higher than the national average, and above the target of 95%. 
 

18. London Councils have been consulting on changes to the indicator set for 
2013/14, to incorporate indicators relating to the new national performance 

Page 17



frameworks for adults’ and children’s services. This has delayed the collection 
of Q1 and Q2 data, which should be available later in the year. 

 
19. Corporate Plan performance indicators The Board considered an initial 

‘long list’ of performance indicators that could form the basis of a set of Key 
performance Indicators (KPIs) for the 2014-18 Corporate Plan. The Board 
supported the move to reintroduce a set of KPIs into the Corporate Plan, 
subject to the views of Members when detailed consultation on the Plan takes 
place later in the year. 
 

20. Savings from strategic reviews and other initiatives Appendix 2 shows the 
latest position in respect of the savings generated by the current programme 
of strategic and other reviews, as monitored by the Efficiency Board. Table 1 
shows the reviews that have generated savings during 2012/13 along with the 
anticipated 2013/14 savings. Table 2 shows the impact of the departmental 
budget reductions implemented in 2011/12, and table 3 shows the target 
reductions from the 2013/14 and 2014/15 budget reductions. 

 
21. Since the last report to this sub-Committee, the figures for PP2P savings 

(table 1) have been updated, and Central markets Rents/Service Charges 
have been added to table 2. 
 

 
Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – LAPS Dashboard (Q4 of 2012/13) 

• Appendix 2 - Savings Schedule (as at 22nd July) 

 

 
Neil Davies 
Head of Corporate Performance and Development 
 
T: 020 77332 3327 
E: neil.davies@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 18



C
it

y
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
: 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 D

a
s
h

b
o

a
rd

: 
2

0
1

2
-1

3
 -

 Q
4

 F
in

a
l 

v
e

rs
io

n

R
is

k
 a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

il
it

y
V

a
lu

e
  
 B

e
tt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
G

ro
u

p

A
v
e

ra
g

e
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 l
if

e
 c

h
a

n
c

e
s

V
a

lu
e

  
 B

e
tt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
G

ro
u

p

A
v
e

ra
g

e

Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

V
a

lu
e

  
 B

e
tt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
G

ro
u

p

A
v
e

ra
g

e

L
IS

 1
: 
v
io

le
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 

c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

N
I 

1
5

)

1
.9

2
(a

)
!

1
7

.7
8

L
IS

 1
0

: 
%

 o
f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 

4
 o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 

M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

S
2

 (
N

I 
7

3
)

1
0

0
.0

!
8

2
.6

1
L

IS
 1

9
: 
k
g

 o
f 
re

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 (

N
I 
1

9
1

)
3

8
9

4
9

4

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
A

n
n

u
a

l 
2

0
1

1
-1

2
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

L
IS

 2
: 
R

o
b

b
e

ry
, 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
 b

u
rg

la
ry

, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ft
 o

f/
fr

o
m

 a
 m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 

c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

N
I 

1
6

)

2
.0

(a
)
!

2
1

.7
2

L
IS

 1
1

: 
%

 o
f 
L

A
C

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 

G
C

S
E

s
 (

in
c
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
)

(N
I 

1
0

1
)*

*

n
/a

2
0

.0
0

L
IS

 2
0

: 
%

 o
f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

s
e

n
t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 &

 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 (

N
I 
1

9
2

)

3
7

.3
3

5
.1

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
A

n
n

u
a

l 
2

0
1

1
-1

2
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

L
IS

 3
: 
T

o
ta

l 
n

o
ti
fi
a

b
le

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 

p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

L
IS

 3
)

2
2

.6
(a

)
!

9
2

.9
0

L
IS

 1
2

: 
%

 o
f 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 

y
e

a
rs

 1
2

-1
4

 w
h

o
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
 (

N
I 

1
1

7
)

0
.9

!
4

.5
1

L
IS

 2
1

a
: 
%

 o
f 
la

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

(N
I 

1
9

5
a

)

2
.2

5
.3

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
M

o
s

t 
re

c
e

n
t 

s
u

rv
e

y

L
IS

 4
: 
%

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
s
 c

o
re

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 3

5
 

d
a

y
s
 (

N
I 
6

0
)

n
/a

7
0

.8
7

L
IS

 1
3

: 
%

 o
f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 c

lie
n

ts
 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e

c
te

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

N
I 

1
3

0
)

7
8

.0
6

4
.8

6

L
IS

 2
1

b
: 
%

 o
f 
la

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
d

e
tr

it
u

s
 

(N
I 
1

9
5

b
)

0
.8

"
7

.2

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
M

o
s

t 
re

c
e

n
t 

s
u

rv
e

y

L
IS

 5
: 
%

 o
f 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 (

N
I 
6

7
)

1
0

0
9

8
.7

1

L
IS

 1
4

: 
%

 o
f 
c
a

re
rs

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 (

N
I 

1
3

5
)

n
/a

3
5

.4
3

L
IS

 2
1

c
: 
%

 o
f 
la

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff
it
i 
(N

I 

1
9

5
c
)

0
.3

3
.6

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
M

o
s

t 
re

c
e

n
t 

s
u

rv
e

y

L
IS

 6
: 
%

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
2

n
d

 o
r 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 (

N
I 
6

5
)

n
/a

1
1

.7
1

L
IS

 1
5

: 
%

 o
f 
c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

(N
I 
1

4
8

)

n
/a

6
4

.3
8

L
IS

 2
1

d
: 
%

 o
f 
la

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl
y
 

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 (

N
I 
1

9
5

d
)

0
.8

1
.3

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
M

o
s

t 
re

c
e

n
t 

s
u

rv
e

y

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a
r 

A
p

r 
1
2
 t

o
 M

a
r 

1
3

S
n

a
p

s
h

o
t 

- 
A

u
g

 1
2

L
IS

 8
: 
%

 o
f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 

liv
in

g
 (

N
I 
1

4
2

)*
*

9
9

.5
9

7
.9

6

L
IS

 1
7

: 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 

liv
in

g
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

(N
I 
1

5
6

)

1
4

"
1

2
1

9
.0

3
L

IS
 2

2
: 
%

 o
f 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 (

B
V

P
I 
9

)
9

9
.5

!
9

6
.5

Y
e

a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 A
p

r 
1

2
 t

o
 D

e
c

 1
2

S
n

a
p

s
h

o
t 

- 
M

a
r 

1
3

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

L
IS

 9
a

: 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 i
n

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 H

B
/C

T
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
n

e
w

 

c
la

im
s
 (

N
I 
1

8
1

a
)

2
2

.0
(a

)
2

4
.6

0
L

IS
 1

8
: 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 (

L
IS

 1
8

)
2

4
!

4
7

2
.8

2
L

IS
 2

3
: 
%

 o
f 
n

o
n

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 (

B
V

P
I 
1

0
)

9
8

.6
9

7
.6

Y
e

a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 A
p

r 
1

2
 t

o
 D

e
c

 1
2

R
o

ll
in

g
 y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3
F

u
ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

L
IS

 9
b

: 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 i
n

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 H

B
/C

T
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 

o
f 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

 (
N

I 
1

8
1

b
)

8
.5

(a
)

1
2

.5
7

L
IS

 2
4

: 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e

r 
F

T
E

 (
2

0
1

0
-1

1
 Q

4
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

ff
) 

(B
V

P
I 
1

2
)

7
.6

7
.6

Y
e

a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 A
p

r 
1

2
 t

o
 D

e
c

 1
2

R
o

ll
in

g
 Y

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 -
 M

a
r 

1
3

L
IS

 2
5

a
: 
%

 o
f 
m

in
o

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 8

 w
e

e
k
s
 (

N
I 

1
5

7
b

)

6
9

.8
6

8
.4

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

L
IS

 2
5

b
: 
%

 o
f 
'o

th
e

r'
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 8

 

w
e

e
k
s
 (

N
I 
1

5
7

c
)

7
2

.8
8

0
.2

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
A

p
r 

1
2

 t
o

 M
a

r 
1

3

1
0

0
.0

7
6

.8
4

L
IS

 7
: 
%

 o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
's

 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 t
o

 i
n

it
ia

l 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
* 

(N
I 
6

8
)*

*
  
 B

e
tt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
G

ro
u

p

A
v
e

ra
g

e

!

In
te

re
s

t 
to

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c

V
a

lu
e

1
1

.1
9

L
IS

 1
6

: 
%

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 

o
n

 o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 (
N

I 
1

5
2

)
4

.7

9
1

9
3

9
5

9
8

1
0

0

5
6

6
7

7
8

8
9

1
0

0

0
.7

6
.5

1
2

.4
1

8
.2

2
4

.0

9
6

9
7

9
8

9
9

1
0

0

1
2

2
2

3
2

4
2

5
2

2
0

2
8

3
7

4
6

5
4

1
3

1
2

9
5

4
5

8
6

2
2

7
8

5

1
4

7
9

1
2

1
6

1
0

1
5

2
0

0
.0

2
.5

5
.0

7
.5

1
0

.0

0
.0

1
.7

3
.3

5
.0

6
.6

7
8

8
3

8
9

9
4

1
0

0

0
9

1
9

2
8

3
7

2
9

4
4

5
9

7
5

9
0

1
3

3
0

4
7

6
3

8
0

4
4

5
4

6
5

7
6

8
61

3
6

8
1

0

5
8

1
1

1
4

1
7

1
4

8
2

3
1

6
3
2

2
4

4
0

3
2

4
9

2
4

2
7

9
5

3
5

7
9

0
1

0
4
5

5
.2

6
.4

7
.6

8
.7

9
.9

9
3

9
5

9
6

9
8

1
0

0

9
5

9
6

9
7

9
9

1
0

0

4
6

5
6

6
7

7
7

8
7

5
9

6
8

7
6

8
5

9
4

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

n
o

te
s

a
.

T
h

e
d
ia

m
o

n
d

re
p

re
s
e
n

ts
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

y
o

u
r

c
h

o
s
e

n
b

o
ro

u
g

h
.

T
o

th
e

ri
g
h

t
o
f

th
e

b
la

c
k

b
a

r
re

p
re

s
e

n
ts

b
e

tt
e
r

th
a

n
a

v
e

ra
g

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

,t
o

th
e

le
ft

re
p

re
s
e

n
ts

lo
w

e
r

th
a

n
a

v
e

ra
g

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.
b

.
L

o
w

e
r

th
a

n
a

v
e

ra
g

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

im
p

ly
p

o
o

r
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

,
a

n
d

v
ic

e
v
e

rs
a

.

c
.
**

T
h

is
d

e
n

o
te

s
th

e
re

a
re

fe
w

e
r

th
a

n
1

6
re

tu
rn

s
fo

r
th

a
t

in
d

ic
a

to
r.

d
.

P
le

a
s
e

n
o

te
th

a
t

th
e

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

m
e
a

s
u
re

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ri
ly

re
la

te
to

th
e

s
a

m
e

ti
m

e
p
e

ri
o

d
a
s

b
o

ro
u

g
h

d
a

ta
.
P

le
a

s
e

s
e

e
'e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
s
'f

o
r

fu
rt

h
e

r
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

.
e

.
(a

)
th

is
d

e
n

o
te

s
th

a
t

fo
r

d
a

ta
p

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d

b
y

L
o

n
d

o
n

C
o

u
n

c
ils

,
th

e
b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
th

e
ir

o
w

n
d

a
ta

in
s
te

a
d

.
f.

B
lu

e
fo

n
t

in
d

ic
a

te
s

a
p

re
s

o
u

rc
e

d
d

a
ta

it
e

m
.

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c

il
s

. 
C

o
n

ta
c

t:
 L

A
P

S
@

lo
n

d
o

n
c

o
u

n
c

il
s

.g
o

v
.u

k

D
a

s
h

b
o

a
rd

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 o

n
 2

6
/6

/2
0

1
3

4
1

2
1

9
2

7
3

5

1
.9

9
.4

1
7

.0
2

4
.5

3
2

.0

2
.0

1
0

.0
1

8
.0

2
6

.0
3

4
.1

5
1

6
2

7
2

8
3

9
42
3

8
7

1
5

2
2

1
7

2
8

2

k
e

y   
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
ve

ra
g

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

lo
w

e
r

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 2

5
%

m
id

d
le

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 5

0
%

h
ig

h
e

r

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 2

5
%

re
la

ti
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

r
m

a
n

c
e

 i
s

:

q
u

it
e

 b
e

lo
w

 a
ve

ra
g

e
q

u
it
e

 a
b

o
ve

 a
v
e

ra
g

e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 a

ve
ra

g
e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y 

a
b

o
ve

 a
ve

ra
g

e

# $

" !

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 2 

SAVINGS SCHEDULE 

(as at 22nd July 2013) 
Notes: 
 

 Savings shown are not cumulative – they indicate the savings achieved/anticipated in 

each year, compared to a base year of 2009/10 for most items. 

 Forward figures are at current prices. They should only be inflated if inflation increases 

are to be provided in future years. 

 
Table 1: Phase I Savings - all funds 2012/13 

£000 

2013/14 

£000 

Street Cleansing 581 581 

Trade Waste 334 334 

Public Conveniences 143 143 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Minors 50 50 

HR Review (phases I and II) 300 300 

IS Shared Services 428 428 

Chief Officer Budget Reviews 2009 2,645 2,645 

Barbican Estate Car Parks 197 197 

Telecoms 77 77 

Security Contract 50 50 

Cleaning and Window Cleaning Contract 150 150 

PP2P net (cost)/savings (1,941) 1,170 

Sub-total 3,014 6,215 

 
Table 2: 2011/12 Budget Reductions 2012/13 

£000 

2013/14 

£000 

Departmental reductions 2.5% 3,880 3,880 

Departmental reductions 10% 13,696 14,035 

Museum/LSO/LSSO 800 800 

New Homes Bonus (note 1) 268 372 

Departmental reorganisations (note 2) 134 345 

Central Market rents/Service Charges 0 1,000 

Golden Lane Leisure Centre    

Contract 40 119 

Academies support post (39) (39) 

One-off costs of change (300) 0 

Sub-total 18,479 20,512 

 

Table 3: 2013/14 and 2014/15 Budget 

Reductions 

2013/14 

£000 

2014/15 

£000 

All funds - Departmental reductions 2% 664 2,460 

City Fund - Departmental reductions 2% 465 1,598 

 

Notes: 

1 Receivable for six years and be adjusted year on year for net additional dwellings 

2 Full year impact: £550,000 (from 2014/15) 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s):  
Efficiency and Performance Sub Committee 

Date:  
06 November 2013 

Subject: CIPFA VFM indicators 2011/12 Public 
 

Report of: 
The Chamberlain 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report outlines the movement in the CIPFA Public Sector Corporate Services 
VFM Indicators for Finance between 2011/12 (the latest available statistics) and 
2010/11. It also outlines the CIPFA VFM Indicators for HR, Legal Services and 
Democratic Services. 

The comparator base used is London Boroughs and large Metropolitan 
Councils/Unitary Authorities. 

Overall Finance, HR and Legal Services score well on embedding modern practices 
and on impact in the organisation. However, all three departments are relatively high 
cost compared to the local authorities in the comparator group due to the nature of 
our corporate structure, the mix of work undertaken and the strategic prioritisation of 
activities that local authorities have cut back on, such as training. The Democratic 
Services benchmarking Club report highlights the large number of Members in the 
City, and the consequent large number of formal committees. The printing costs of 
Committee reports are high, although staff costs per Member and training costs per 
Member are well below the average. 

Going forward, the Chamberlain is focused on securing further efficiencies through 
process re-engineering and system improvements, improving the financial 
management information to service users, ensuring appropriate professional 
development of staff and considering how to benchmark costed activities as part of 
the service based reviews.  

The Comptroller and City Solicitor’s focus on improving efficiency is mainly through 
better demand management, but also exploring possible shared service 
arrangements where practicable.  

The Director of HR is focusing on a number of areas going forward, including ways 
to buy cheaper through the PP2P HR category board and the use of the CLPS, 
doing things differently for instance merging some training services with IS, and 
reviewing the return on investment in training to ensure we can demonstrate value to 
the organisation. 

The Town Clerk’s Department is working to reduce the number of reports that are 
printed, and encouraging a more succinct writing style, to further reduce the number 
of printed pages produced. There are plans to produce a more comprehensive 
training programme, with may increase the overall spend per member. 

 

Recommendation: 

That Members note the report. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



Main Report 

Background 
 
1. Members have previously been presented with the CIPFA Public Sector 

Corporate Services VFM Indicators for the Finance function 2010/11 and were 
keen to be updated with changes in data in this area. Comparators were 
difficult to establish last year with so few London Boroughs submitting data. 
This year participation is much improved with the following bodies included in 
the comparator base: Barking, Barnet, Hackney, Harrow, Havering, Lambeth, 
Newham, Redbridge and Waltham Forest. 
 

2 The CIPFA Finance data for 2011/12 is now available and is presented in 
Appendix A.  The report has been analysed and compared with the previous 
year’s submission to monitor changes and identify any areas of continuing 
concern.  

3. This year we have also submitted returns for HR, Legal Services and 
Democratic Services, which include data for 2011/12. These reports are set 
out at Appendices B, C and D. The Comptroller and City Solicitor, the Director 
of HR, and the Deputy Town Clerk have been consulted as part of the 
analysis. 

Finance  
 
4. The Public Sector Corporate Services VFM Indicators for Finance Services in 

2011/12 compare the City Of London Corporation data with nine London 
Boroughs. The key messages from the analysis are: 

• Although the City still appears expensive on elements of the economy and 
efficiency indicators the position has improved from last year; 

• Many of the secondary indicators around the efficiency of the Finance function 
remain as positive as they were in 2010/11, however an increase in the 
number of credit notes raised warrants further investigation;  

• Best practice organisations ensure that the totality of their spend is allocated 
against outputs, supported by key metrics which measure performance with 
clear lines of accountability. The City, like the majority of the comparator 
group, has not attempted to align spend to outputs and it remains a key 
challenge to put in place a comprehensive suite of KPI’s linked to fully costed 
outputs; and 

• Modern practices are well embedded compared to other authorities, although 
a number of these have slipped since 2011/12 and will need to be invigorated 
as part of the service based review.   

5. Indicator FP1 relates to the cost of the finance function in relation to the size 
of the organisation as measured by the resources being managed. On that 
basis the City of London finance function is calculated to cost 1.8% of the 
overall organisational spend. This is an improvement on a figure of 1.9% for 
2010/11 however this is still a ‘red light’ in CIPFA terms as it compares 
unfavourably with an average of 1.2%. As was set out in last year’s report, the 
unique Committee structure of the City means that the City is always likely to 

Page 24



be significantly more expensive than local authority comparators. However, it 
is recognised that two of the main financial systems are no longer fit for 
purpose and replacement/upgrades to the Manhattan and Oracle systems are 
needed to allow efficiencies to be realised in the Finance team. 

6. Given this high level of overall finance spend,  Indicators FP1 (a) to (c) seek to 
show whether the correct proportion of the finance activity cost is allocated 
between transaction processing, business decision support and the cost of 
reporting and controls. In 2010/11 City had two red light issues in this area – 
the proportion of spend on reporting and control was deemed too high and the 
proportion on supporting business decisions was too low. Both areas are no 
longer considered red light issues in 2011/12 as a result of the reorganisation 
following the Strategic Finance Review which appears to have successfully 
rebalanced the Finance function towards supporting the business.  

7. Many of the secondary indicators around the efficiency of the Finance function 
remain as positive as they were in 2010/11. The cost of Customer Invoicing 
per customer invoice, the number of Debtor Days, the cost of accounts 
payable per accounts invoice processed, and the % of invoices paid within 30 
days are all within the top quartile of London local authority comparators.  

8. However, one area of concern is Indicator FS5 which relates to amount of 
credit notes raised as a % of total customer invoices raised. This figure was 
6.4% in 2010/11 and in 2011/12 this increased to 7.8%. While this is below 
the London average of 9.1% it is an area that needs further investigation. This 
statistic indicates the accuracy of invoices raised and we should be aiming to 
see a year–on-year reduction in the percentage achieved in this area. 

9.  FS 6 shows the cost of accounts payable to be high when compared to the 
group. However this is pre- establishment of the City of London Procurement 
Service, which we expect to make efficiencies in this area. The payroll admin 
cost per employee also appears high compared to the Group.  

10.  Indicator FP4 relates to the % of the organisational expenditure for which 
there are fully costed outputs which are measured by key performance 
indicators and for which a named individual is accountable. High performing 
organisations are likely to ensure that the totality of their spend is allocated 
against outputs, supported by key metrics which measure performance with 
clear lines of accountability. The City has not attempted to outline spend to 
outputs in the past and it remains a key challenge to put in place a 
comprehensive suite of KPI’s linked to fully costed outputs. This could be an 
area that any potential service level review could look at. 

 
11. Indicator FS1 sets out the % of finance staff that are professionally qualified. 

The City of London figure remains at close to one-third which is below the 
average of 34.7% however a renewed professional training and development 
programme has recently been introduced that should see this mix change in 
forthcoming years. Also a number of final stage trainees are expected to pass 
their exams shortly which will improve the position. 

12. Indicator FS8, the percentage of outstanding debt that is more than 90 days 
old from the date of the invoice, remains well below the average of 36.9% but 
has increased from 10.1% in 2010-11 to 12.3% in 2011-12. 

Page 25



13.  During 2011/12 no User Satisfaction surveys were carried out as it was a 
period of significant reorganisation and change. However targeted surveys 
have been carried out during 2012/13 for CLPS, IS reorganisation and 
feedback sought from the Strategic Finance Review user group. The results 
from these surveys have been reported separately to members as part of the 
on-going project management arrangements. 

14.  The City also scored very well for using modern finance practices as set out in 
Indicator FP7 with a score of 8 out of 10. However, a number of these 
indicators are dropping off and require reinvigoration: 

• A rolling programme of reviewing and benchmarking the organisation’s costs.  

• Budget holders can have on-line real-time insight into the status of their 
budgets using CBIS, but not many use the facility due to the complexities of 
the system. The Finance Leadership Group has delivered monthly budget 
bursting to budget holders and is currently refining a ‘money dashboard’ for 
senior officers. Better real time management information is a key requirement 
in the Oracle 12 upgrade.  

• Needs based budgets based on activity levels are prepared for some 
departments but not for all. 

15. Of the indicators not currently embedded, the customer satisfaction 
questionnaire is referred to above and FMP 10 on a comprehensive 
development programme for Finance staff, ensuing at least five days of 
continuing professional development, will be pursued through the 
department’s training committee. 

16.  The Chamberlain is focused on a number of areas going forward, securing 
further efficiencies through process re-engineering and system improvements, 
improving the financial management information to service users, ensuring 
appropriate professional development of staff and considering how to 
benchmark costed activities as part of the service based reviews.   

Legal Services 

17. The Public Sector Corporate Services VFM Indicators for Legal Services in 
2011/12 compare the City Of London Corporation data with 23 Unitary local 
authorities. The key messages from the analysis are: 

• The City appears expensive on the economy and efficiency indicators; 

• The legal services provided by the Comptroller and City Solicitor are very 
highly regarded; and 

• Modern practices are well embedded.   

18.    There are four main indicators relating to the economy and efficiency of the 
legal service and the City of London is in the most expensive quartile for each.  

• The Indicator LS1(a) expresses the cost of the legal services function as a 
percentage of organisational running costs. The City of London percentage of 
0.92% is almost double the average.  

Page 26



• Indicator LS1 (b) is very similar but compares costs net of income as a 
percentage of organisational running costs. Again the City figure of 0.81% is 
almost double the average.  

• Indicator LS5 sets out the cost of the legal function per employee - the City 
figure of £1,414 is nearly triple the average of £509.  

• Indicator LS8 sets out the cost per hour of providing legal work. The City 
figure of £111 is again in the top quartile compared to an average of £65. 

19.  Clearly by any measure the in-house City service appears to be more 
expensive than the comparator group of in-house local authority teams. 
However, the nature and range of legal services required by the City and 
provided by the Comptroller and City Solicitor are very different from those 
required by London Boroughs. 

20. Roughly a third of the Department’s lawyers are deployed to undertake 
commercial property work and they are expected to deal on equal terms with 
partners in City Law firms. Similarly the planning law team deal with complex 
and high value developments on a day to day basis. The Department also has 
a much higher number of lawyers specialising in public and administrative, 
electoral and charity law than the Boroughs due to the City’s unique and 
complex nature. On the other hand, the Department has no specialist lawyers 
dealing with social services (child protection and adult social care) or 
maintained schools whereas London Boroughs all have sizeable teams 
devoted to such areas. 

21. The nature of the work means that the Corporation needs to recruit and retain 
first class lawyers. The commercial and/or highly technical nature of the work 
means that the Corporation needs to offer higher salaries than London 
Boroughs to attract the right talent. Commercial law traditionally has higher 
salary levels than child protection and social care law. 

22. Our geographic proximity to the major law firms and the nature of the work 
means that the Department is competing with the City practices as well as 
local government for the best lawyers.  Retaining appropriately qualified and 
experienced staff is one of the main risk factors on the Department’s risk 
register.  

23.  Looking at the drivers underpinning the cost of legal services, the highest cost 
is employee costs and this is further supported by the LS5 indicator on cost of 
the legal function per employee. Rates are also high for the cost per hour of 
providing legal work (LS8).  However when compared against known 
benchmarks, for example the average hourly rate given in the Bromley 
framework of £85-£280 and the London Boroughs Legal Alliance of £100-
£245, the City compares very favourably with a rate of £50-£120. Private 
sector hourly rates for the type of casework undertaken are in the region of 
£200 to £400 plus for an experienced practitioner. The Department thus 
compares very favourably with private practice in terms of value for money 
and quality. 

24. The City’s costs are also driven by its location in terms of the accommodation 
costs and by the high level of investment in training and development as part 
of the recharge from HR. 

Page 27



25.  Staff numbers have been reduced from 72 in 1989 to 54. Over that time the 
demand for legal services has increased, particularly in relation to 
employment, procurement, information law and planning. The Comptroller’s 
focus on improving efficiency is mainly through improved demand 
management and procurement of external lawyers (when used) through 
properly tendered framework agreements. 

26.  The Department is also considering whether opportunities exist for further 
income generation (above the £600k currently generated mainly from property 
developers and s106 funds) and areas where shared services might be 
appropriate. However, opportunities for shared services are limited as it 
depends on developing excess capacity in the specialist fields practised.  

27.  The level of satisfaction with the legal service is very high as shown by 
Indicators LS3(a) and LS3(b). The City also holds the LEXCEL Quality 
Assurance accreditation and the LS4 indicator concerning use of Modern 
Practices in the City scores 10 out of 10.  

Human Resources 

28. The Public Sector Corporate Services VFM Indicators for Human Resources 
in 2011/12 compare the City Of London Corporation data with eight London 
Boroughs. The key messages from the analysis are: 

• The City appears expensive on the economy and efficiency indicators; 

• The City invests in employees development, has low sickness rates and staff 
turnover; and 

• Modern practices are well embedded.   

29.  There are two main indicators relating to the economy and efficiency of 
Human Resources: 

•  Indicator HRP1(a) sets out the HR cost as a percentage of organisational 
running cost. The City of London figure of 0.74% is below the average of 
0.87%.  

• Indicator HRP1(b) calculates the overall HR cost per FTE. Against this 
measure however, the City is in the most expensive quartile with a figure of 
£1,247 compared to an average of £1,032. 

30.  There are number of factors influencing the high cost of the service. The 
make-up of the City is unusual in that the HR department has to respond to 
customers such as COL Police, the Barbican and the three schools who all 
have differing needs and expectations. Furthermore, there was a strategic 
decision to keep the level of investment in training and development at a high 
level, albeit with a significant rationalisation in how this training is delivered.  

31. The department is going through a process of change and in 2011-12 was just 
at the point of unifying HR functions and staff that had previously been held in 
service departments. This has been followed by a second stage of 
rationalisation and staffing budget reduction 

Page 28



32. The Cost of agency staff as a percentage of the total pay bill as set out in 
Indicator HRS2 was 8.4% against an average of 7.5% however this reflects a 
period when there was a freeze on permanent recruitment. The cost of 
recruitment per post filled of £1,460 compares favourably with the London 
average of £1,712. 

33. There are favourable responses in terms of the Impact of the HR function.  

• Indicator HRP3 shows the City to be above average for investing in 
employees’ development.   

• Staff turnover, as shown by Indicator HRP4, is 7.1%; nearly half the London 
average. However, low staff turnover may not necessarily be a good thing as 
it can reflect a ‘stagnant’ organisation so this does require careful monitoring.  

• Indicator HRP5 shows the average working days per FTE lost annually 
through sickness at 7.1 to be below the average of 8.8; however this has now 
improved to 6.8 as a result of initiatives such as the Sickness Absence 
Review Group- which was established to support line managers in the formal 
sickness processes.  

• 100% of staff have an annual face to face appraisal compared to an average 
of 76% across London Boroughs. 

34. Also within the impact section there are indicators which look less favourable.  
HRS4 shows the elapsed time from a vacancy occurring to the acceptance of 
a post, with 87 days against an average of 67.9. However in 2011/12 the City 
was actively pursuing a policy of reviewing each vacancy as it arose to ensure 
necessary economies could be secured. This scrutiny process would have 
delayed usual recruitment times. HR intend to develop a dashboard in the 
future to monitor such performance indicators.   

35.  There are a number of indicators which relate to the equality and diversity 
agenda- HRS10 to HRS13. These indicators are regularly monitored by 
Establish Committee and so no comment is made in this report. 

36. During 2011/12 no User Satisfaction surveys were carried out as it was a 
period of significant reorganisation and change. Such surveys are planned for 
the future. 

37. The City also scored very well for using modern HR practices as set out in 
Indicator HRP7 with a score of 9 out of 10. The HR department continues to 
receive Investors in People accreditation, which a number of other local 
authorities have been unable to maintain. 

38.  The department is focusing on a number of areas going forward, including 
ways to buy cheaper through the PP2P HR category board and the use of the 
CLPS, doing things differently for instance merging some training services 
with IS, and reviewing the return on investment in training to ensure we can 
demonstrate value to the organisation. 

Democratic Services 

39.  The Democratic Services Benchmarking Club report compares the City of 
London Corporation’s data for 2013, with eleven London Boroughs. This data 

Page 29



relates to a different accounting period from the other information used in this 
report as the exercise to gather it took place at a later date. The key 
messages from the analysis are: 

• The City has 125 members as opposed to an average of around 60 for 
the other authorities in the survey.  

• The number of formal committees and the number of directors’ boards 
are high, but this is to be expected from the City’s service based 
structure compared to the executive/cabinet structure operated by the 
comparator authorities.  

• The City generates 2.2m report pages a year compared to an average 
for the comparator authorities of 1.1m and printing cost per page is 
high. 

• The staff costs per Member and training costs per Member are well 
below the average of the comparator authorities 

40. The governance procedures are different at the City for a good reason. The 
City uniquely has businesses as well as residents in its electoral base, and 
has 125 elected Members. 

41. Overall printing costs are high for several reasons.  A large number of reports 
are produced because of the comparatively large number of committees that 
are serviced, when compared to the Local Authorities in the data set.  There is 
also extensive use of colour in the reports, causing significantly higher 
production costs than black and white.  In addition, the costs of production of 
the CoL Pocket Book (circa £10k) are included in the City’s total. 

42. However, when looking at the cost of a standard print job (as defined by 
CIPFA), the City’s cost is the second lowest of the comparator authorities. 

43. Some work has been conducted to reduce the number of reports produced 
and the introduction of iPads and other IS equipment for Members will lead to 
a reduction in print production over time.  Further work is also planned to 
encourage a more succinct writing style across the organisation, which will 
further reduce the number of printed pages produced. 

44. The total costs per Member are well below average for the comparator group. 
The City’s cost is £2,696 per Member, whilst the next lowest (Richmond) is 
£15,606 per Member. These figures are skewed, however, by the fact that 
City Members are not paid allowances. Drilling down into the direct costs 
element of the data set, IS support costs for members are shown to be 
significantly higher (£800/Member) than the London average (£172/Member). 
The figures used for the CoL included the full cost of providing iPads, laptops, 
and Blackberrys (inclusive of line costs) and broadband connectivity as well 
as printers and associated running costs Also within this data set- staff costs 
look low; this may be because the staff servicing the scrutiny function within 
Local Authorities would have been included in their totals.  Although Member 
training costs are lower than average, there is a plan to introduce a more 
comprehensive training programme which may increase the overall spend per 
Member.  

Page 30



45. A number of the comparator statistics are given in terms of ‘per head of 
residential population’ figures, which are clearly not directly comparable with 
the City. However, using a daytime population of 308,0001 would make the 
City the third most populous authority in the survey, just behind Croydon 
(346,000) and Enfield (312,000) and above Lambeth (285,000). The City has 
staff costs of £537,000 budgeted for 2013/14 which while not as low as 
Croydon (£266,000) are better than both Enfield (£680,000) and Lambeth 
(584,000). 

46. The City did not submit data for School Appeals (section 3 of Appendix D), 
Civic mayor’s (or equivalent) Office (section 5), or Overview and Scrutiny 
(section 6). 

47. The City’s figure for “Key Decisions – Officers” was the highest in the 
comparator group. This is likely to be due to different interpretations of what to 
include in this category. The definition used by the City when submitting data 
was ‘A decision normally taken by Members that is processed either under 
urgency rules or as a delegation. 

 

Background Papers: 
 
VFM indicators - economy of finance unit reported to 3rd February 2012 Committee 

 
 

Contact: 
Caroline Al-Beyerty 

Financial Services Director 
caroline.al-beyerty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Tel. 0207 332 1164 
 
 

Mark Jarvis 
Head of Finance, Unit 4 

mark.jarvis@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Tel 0207 332 1221 

                                           
1
 This is the figure used by HMIC for the City of London Police VFM Profiles Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Sector Corporate Services VfM Indicators

Finance

2011/12

compared with

With Other London Boroughs

City of London Corporation

Tel: 020 3117 1840

3 Robert St, London, WC2N 6RL

CIPFA Business Ltd

Computed and printed by:

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 1 23/04/2013Page 33



Preface

The UK Audit Agencies (Audit Commission, NAO, Audit Wales, Audit Scotland and Northern 

Ireland Audit Office) combined together to develop a set of indicators to measure the value 

for money of support services across the public sector.  KPMG, with CIPFA as a partner, 

was appointed to undertake the research and development work and the Audit Agencies 

published their report in May 2007.

The functions covered by the VfM indicators (Communications, Finance, HR, ICT, Legal, 

Estates Management and Procurement) have been identified by the Government as a 

priority area for securing efficiency improvements and releasing resources for use in 

delivering front-line services.  Although the Audit Agencies were keen for public sector 

bodies to use the indicators, they decided not to offer a benchmarking service themselves.  

CIPFA has therefore undertaken to provide this service to the public sector.

I hope that you find the enclosed information useful, and more importantly that you use it 

in the spirit in which it is intended; this is a tool to help you take a view on the value for 

money provided by your corporate support services, and provide some pointers as to how 

they might improve.

CIPFA would be more than happy to come and discuss with you potential opportunities for 

you to improve your services, building on the information in this report.  Please do not 

hesitate to give John Wallace a call (0207 543 5600) if you would like to discuss this or any 

other matters further.

Julian Mund

Director of Markets and Product Development

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 2 23/04/2013Page 34



RESULTS ON ONE PAGE City of London

Economy and efficiency Impact on organisation

• •• • •
FP1 FP1(a) FP1(b) FP1(c) FP2 FP3 FP4

Satisfaction FP5 Modern practices

•
Commissioner User FP7

Notes:

-

-

-

-

a green light indicates performance in the best quartile; a yellow light indicates performance 

between the median and best quartile; an amber light indicates performance between the median 

and worst quartile and a red light indicates performance in the worst quartile

for the purposes of this report, high cost and low productivity are considered poor. However, we 

accept this is a generalisation and that in some circumstances organisations can choose to invest 

more in functions because they have under invested in the past or because they want to place 

particular emphasis on a function

full descriptions of the indicators are shown in the remainder of this report

the FP7 indicator shown for modern practices was optional for organisations using the CIPFA 

Financial Management Model

The Audit Agencies developed an approach to considering Value for Money for Corporate Services 

which had four dimensions. The overall results are shown below:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 3 23/04/2013
Page 35



Section 1 - ECONOMY AND EFFICIENCY

FP 1 Cost of the Finance function

FP1  Finance function cost as % of organisational running costs

Cost of Difference

From median (£'000) From lower quartile (£'000)

Economies of Scale

£4,150

This chart investigates the relationship between cost and size of the organisation. There is 

some indication that very small organisations tend to use a higher proportion of their 

resources on the Finance function.

£3,552

1.1%1.8% 1.2% 1.3%

This shows the monetary value represented by the difference in percentage from the 

median (and lower quartile). Favourable variances are shown as negative figures.

City of London Average Median UQLQ

1.0%

Quartile

0.0

%

0.2

%

0.4

%

0.6

%

0.8

%

1.0

%

1.2

%

1.4

%

1.6

%

1.8

%

2.0

%

FP1

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

2.0%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator that seeks to establish whether the costs of running the 

finance function are in proportion to the resources that are being managed. Measurement of the total 

cost of the finance function as a percentage of overall spend allows management to monitor closely 

the finance cost of their organisation and could be used to track trends across any given time-frame. 

Measurement of the cost of transaction processing and business decision support enables 

organisations to understand the resources devoted by finance on ‘value added’ activities as a 

proportion of finance cost.

Over time, organisations should expect to reduce expenditure on transaction processing as a 

percentage of the total cost of the finance function. Similarly they should expect to increase the 

percentage of the total cost of the finance function spent on business decision support.

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

0.0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6
Organisational Running Costs £'bn

F
in

a
n

c
e

c
o

s
t

a
s

%
o

f
O

R
C

Other Organisations City of London

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 4 23/04/2013Page 36



City of London UQ

Median

40% 43%39%

Average LQ

FP1(b) Business decision support cost as a percentage of finance function costs

26% 27% 37%

Average LQ

22%

Median

Median

29%

38% 37% 39%

UQCity of London

37% 43%

LQ

FP1(c) Cost of reporting and control as a proportion of finance function costs

Average

37%37%

UQCity of London

FP1(a)  Transaction processing cost as a percentage of finance function costs

Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%
FP1(a)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

FP1(c)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%
Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60% FP1(b)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 5 23/04/2013Page 37



Staff Costs 2011/12 (£'000)

Staff

IT

IT Accommodation

Supplies & Consumables

Outsourcing

Accommodation Other

Total

Outsourcing

Other

£9.07 7,663 £15.09

Finance cost/£'000 Organisation running costs 2011/12

£0.28£0.00

-

-

1,227 

£0.00

Total Cost

£1.45£2.42

£0.00

£0.82

£0.08

£0.47

507,655 

Supplies & 

Consumables 
Organisational 

running costs

For each benchmark two figures are given, the first being the organisation's cost 

and the second (in italics) is the group average.

£18.34 £11.86

£0.50

-

418 

9,308 

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 6 23/04/2013Page 38



2011/12 Actuals

Finance Cost per £'000 Organisational running costs

Staff

£0

£5

£10

£15

£20

IT

£0.00

£0.50

£1.00

£1.50

£2.00

Supplies & Consumables

£0.00

£0.20

£0.40

£0.60

£0.80

£1.00

£1.20

Outsourcing

£0.00

£0.20

£0.40

£0.60

£0.80

£1.00

Other

£0.00

£0.50

£1.00

£1.50

£2.00

£2.50

£3.00

Total

£0

£2

£4

£6

£8

£10

£12

£14

£16

£18

£20

Accommodation

£0.00

£0.20

£0.40

£0.60

£0.80

£1.00

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 7 23/04/2013

P
age 39



Secondary Indicators

22.0 81.783.4 58.4

FS3 Cost of Customer Invoicing function per customer invoice 

Median

FS4 Debtor days

£14.71

UQAverage

Median

£14.13 £16.64

City of London

City of London

112.8

UQ

£11.66

Average LQ

LQ

£13.57

FS4

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator that identifies the average number of days for the 

organisation to receive payment for its invoices.

Organisations should aim to achieve a period-on-period reduction in average debtor days.

Quartile

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

FS3

£0

£5

£10

£15

£20

£25

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator that examines the efficiency of the invoicing function by 

identifying the cost of raising each customer invoice. Organisations should interpret achievement against

this indicator alongside secondary indicators 5 (credit notes as a percentage of invoices raised) and 6 

(cost of Accounts Payable per invoice processed).

In most cases organisations should aim for a period-on-period reduction in the average cost of invoice 

processing. This indicator could additionally suggest the minimum value for which an invoice should be 

raised.

Quartile

£0

£5

£10

£15

£20

£25

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 8 23/04/2013Page 40



FS5 Credit notes as a % total customer invoices raised

£3.32

7.8%

City of London LQ UQ

FS6 Cost of Accounts Payable per accounts payable invoice processed

7.7%

City of London

9.1%

Average LQ Median

£3.65 £5.15

4.5%

Average

UQ

Median

9.5%

£2.59£5.52

FS5

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%
Quartile

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator examines the accuracy of invoices raised by reviewing the number of credit notes required 

to make adjustments to invoices previously raised.

Organisations should aim to achieve a period-on-period reduction in the percentage achieved for this 

indicator. Organisations should interpret achievement against this indicator alongside secondary

indicators 3 (cost per customer invoice processed) and 6 (cost of Accounts Payable per invoice 

processed). (Note: The indicator is being used as a proxy for accuracy although it is recognised that 

organisations may use other mechanisms to make adjustments).

FS6

£0

£1

£2

£3

£4

£5

£6

£7

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator identifying the cost of processing each supplier invoice.

Organisations should aim to achieve a period-on-period reduction in the cost achieved for this 

indicator. Organisations should interpret achievement against this indicator alongside secondary 

indicators 3 (cost per invoice raised) and 5 (credit notes as a percentage of invoices raised).

Quartile

£0

£1

£2

£3

£4

£5

£6

£7

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 9 23/04/2013Page 41



FS7 % payments made by electronic means

65.8%

Average

AverageCity of London LQ

LQ Median

FS9(a) % invoices for commercial goods & services paid by the 

organisation within 10 days of receipt

69.6% 71.2% 81.4%59.4%

93.9% 94.5%88.4%

Median UQ

81.0%86.9%

City of London UQ

FS7

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator identifies the proportion of all payments made electronically, particularly with respect 

to BACS and RfT1, since these methods usually offer the most effective savings of time and cost 

compared with manual payment systems.

In most cases organisations would seek to achieve a period-on-period increase in the proportion of 

payments made electronically.

Quartile

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

FS9(a)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator that identifies the proportion of invoices that an 

organisation pays within 10 days and 30 days or within the agreed payment terms. To encourage 

prompt payment of invoices received. Performance should be within the appropriate prompt 

payment requirements.

Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100

%

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 10 23/04/2013Page 42



FS10 Payroll admin cost per employee paid

UQLQ Median

Average LQCity of London

91.4% 88.7%

City of London Average

FS9(b) % invoices for commercial goods & services paid by the 

organisation within 30 days of receipt or within the agreed payment 

terms

£147.35 £88.08 £57.10

95.4%93.6%

£105.67

Median UQ

£75.75

98.3%

FS10

£0

£50

£100

£150

£200

£250

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

A standard and commonly used indicator that seeks to establish the cost of paying one single 

employee as an indicator of the cost effectiveness of the payroll function.

In most cases organisations should aim for a period-on-period reduction in the average cost.

(Note: This function may be a responsibility of HR in some organisations. In these instances the 

indicator should accordingly be completed by HR)

Quartile

£0

£50

£100

£150

£200

£250

FS9(b)

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%
Quartile

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100

%

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 11 23/04/2013Page 43



Section 2 - IMPACT

 

LQAverage Median

8 143

FP2 Days from period-end closure to distribution of routine financial 

reports to budget managers and overseeing boards and committees

City of London UQ

3 11

Quartile

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40
FP2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator measures the typical number of days it takes the finance department to produce management 

information and so identifies the extent to which budget managers, and overseeing boards and committees, 

can take timely financial decisions based on up to date financial information.

In most circumstances organisations should aim to reduce the number of working days to produce financial 

reports. Organisations should interpret their achievement against this indicator in conjunction with the 

response to the commissioner statement ‘The financial information provided for financial planning and 

management is accurate, timely and easy to access’ (contained in primary indicator 5) and secondary 

indicator 2(b) (which asks whether the year-end accounts were qualified by external audit).

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 12 23/04/2013

Page 44



LQ MedianAverage

FP3 % variation between forecast outturn at month 6 and the actual 

outturn at month 12

UQ

na 2.3% 1.1% 2.0%0.8%

City of London

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator assesses the accuracy of forecasting. Organisations should aim to reduce the level of 

variation between their month 6 forecast and the year-end outturn by improving forecasting and budgetary 

control.

FP3 Absolute Value

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

10.0%
Quartile

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

10.0

%

FP3 Actual Values

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 13 23/04/2013

Page 45



Average LQ Median UQ

na 72.5% 66.3% 72.5%

City of London

78.8%

FP4 % public sector organisation spend for which there are fully costed 

outputs which are measured by key performance metrics and for which 

a named individual is accountable

FP4

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

High performing organisations are likely to ensure that the totality of their spend is allocated against 

outputs, supported by key metrics which measure performance with clear lines of accountability.

Over time, organisations should aim to increase the percentage of their spend that meets the criteria of this 

indicator.

Quartile

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100

%

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 14 23/04/2013

Page 46



Secondary Indicators

UQAverage LQ Median

FS2 (a) Days from date of year-end to submission of annual accounts 

for audit

32.7% 34.7% 26.6% 31.3% 36.3%

City of London

LQ UQ

29 74 52 60 102

Average MedianCity of London

FS1 Professionally qualified finance staff as % total finance staff 

(FTEs) undertaking reporting, controls and decision support processes 

(i.e. excludes those staff involved in transactional processes)

FS1

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100

%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator assesses the capacity and competency of the finance department by examining the proportion 

of staff with a professional accountancy qualification.

In most cases organisations would aim for a period-on-period increase in this percentage. Organisations 

should interpret their achievement against this indicator alongside primary indicator 5 (the

commissioner and user satisfaction index) and secondary indicator 2 (the length of time necessary to 

produce year-end accounts and whether those accounts required qualification).

Quartile

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140 FS2 (a)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator examines the effectiveness of the finance function by assessing their ability to produce a 

timely and accurate set of annual accounts. Date of year-end to submission of annual accounts for audit 

varies both across organisations and sectors. It will be appropriate to compare with similar type 

organisations. In most circumstances organisations should aim to both reduce the number of days taken to 

prepare their year-end accounts and ensure that they do not require external qualification.

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 15 23/04/2013

Page 47



FS2(b) Was the last set of accounts qualified by external audit?

UQ

12.3% 36.9% 21.1% 38.7% 43.5%

Average LQ MedianCity of London

FS8 % outstanding debt that is more than 90 days old from date of 

invoice

FS8

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator examines the ability of the finance department to recover outstanding debts from customers. 

We have adopted the commonly used 90-day credit period as the basis for the indicator.

Organisations should aim to achieve a period-on-period reduction in the proportion achieved for this 

indicator. This indicator should be used in tandem with Secondary Indicator 4.

Quartile

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

FS2(b)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (10)

Yes  (0)

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 16 23/04/2013

Page 48



Section 3 - SATISFACTION

Number of Responses*

Number of Responses*

UQCity of London

#VALUE!

na 3.30

Average

UQ

na

City of London

3.673.46 3.32 3.56

na

LQ Median

3.433.35 3.40

Please note if you are using the online surveys we will complete this section for the final 

reports.

FP5(a) Commissioner satisfaction average score

FP5(b) User satisfaction average score

Average LQ Median

Quartile

0

1

2

3

4

5

Quartile

0

1

2

3

4

5

Commissioner survey

0

1

2

3

4

5

User survey

0

1

2

3

4

5

Rationale and expected impact on behaviour

This indicator examines the effectiveness of the finance function by assessing the perceptions of its 

commissioners and users. The indicators have been identified because they are considered to 

indicate whether the function communicates effectively with its commissioners and users, and is 

responsive to the requirements of the organisation.

Over time, organisations should seek to increase the proportion of commissioners and users 

agreeing with the statements.

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 17 23/04/2013

Page 49



Commissioner Survey

Strongly Agree

Agree

Neither

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

Survey Statements

• The organisation's financial systems are secure and efficient.

• The Finance function proactively anticipates my needs.

• The Finance function provides value for money.

User Survey

Strongly Agree

Agree

Neither

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

Survey Statements

• Finance policies and procedures are clear and understandable.

• Appropriate financial management training for non-finance staff is provided.

• I know who to contact if I have a query regarding finance.

• The organisation has clear and easy to use financial systems.

1

Scores

1

• The Finance function supports the financial implications of the organisation’s strategy, 

policy and delivery discussions by providing effective support and challenge.

• The financial information provided for financial planning and management is accurate, 

timely and easy to access.

Scores

• Finance regularly provides the information needed to understand the level of 

delivery in my area of responsibility and the related cost.

2

3

4

5

These charts show the average performance scores for all participants as black x's. The black 

error bars show one standard deviation either side of the mean. Approximately 65 - 70% of  

the organisations will fall within this range. The red diamond is the average score for your 

organisation.

Analysis of individual statement scores

4

5

2

3

Commissioner Survey

1

2

3

4

5

0 1 2 3 4 5

Survey Statement

S
c
o

r
e

Group Average City of London

User Survey

1

2

3

4

5

0 1 2 3 4 5

Survey Statement

S
c
o

r
e

Group Average City of London

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 18 23/04/2013

Page 50



Section 4 - MANAGEMENT PRACTICE INDICATORS

FP6 CIPFA  Financial Management Model

This indicator was intended primarily for Central Government Bodies

These charts show the average performance scores for all participants as black x's. The black 

error bars show one standard deviation either side of the mean. Approximately 65 - 70% of  the 

organisations will fall within this range. The red diamond is the average score for your 

organisation.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

ty
le

Enabling 

Transformation

Supporting 

Performance

(Care should be taken when interpreting these results as they are based on a very small sample 

size)

Securing 

Stewardship

Management Dimension

Leadership People Process Stakeholders

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

0

1

2

3

4

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 19 23/04/2013

Page 51



FP7 Modern Management Practices

FMP1

FMP2

FMP3

FMP4

FMP5

FMP6

FMP7

FMP8

FMP9

FMP10 No

No

50.0%4 4 50.0%

0

3 62.5% 37.5%

100.0%

100.0%

5 3 62.5% 37.5%

37.5%

12.5%

62.5%

LQ

100.0%

Yes

Yes

City of London

5

8

8 0.0%

Yes

Average UQMedianCity of London

% No

8 8

No

7

Yes

8

Yes 08

100.0%

% Yes

Yes 8 0

Yes

3

3 5

7 1

Yes

Yes 87.5%

0.0%

5 37.5%

0.0%

62.5%

8 0

0.0%

Management practice total score

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Number of management practices in place

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

o
r
g

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 20 23/04/2013

Page 52



FMP1

FMP2

FMP3

FMP4

FMP5

The organisation can demonstrate that it has used at least two of the following to steam-line financial 

processes in the last 3 years; a) bar coding, b) invoice scanning/imaging, c) workflow, d) web 

technologies to build extranets with external stakeholders, e) intranet to build self service capabilities 

for staff to check status, run reports, f) on-line travel and expense system used by claimants that is 

fully integrated with the accounting system.

Standardised organisation-wide integrated software is in place with centralised data processing. This 

should cover as a minimum purchase to payment of supplier and invoice to cash receipt from a 

customer.

A rolling programme of reviewing and benchmarking the organisation’s costs is in place across major 

service areas.

The responsibilities of budget holders are clearly understood and embedded in performance appraisal.

Service levels and expectations have been set with key internal customers using a documented 

approach such as an SLA or Customer Charter, with regular service review meetings held.

FMP1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (0)

Yes  (8)

FMP2

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No (3)

Yes  (5)

FMP3

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (0)

Yes  (8)

FMP4

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (0)

Yes  (8)

FMP5

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (0)

Yes  (8)

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 21 23/04/2013

Page 53



FMP6

FMP7

FMP8

FMP9

FMP10

A comprehensive professional development programme is in place for Finance staff which ensures that 

they receive at least 5 days of continuing professional development per annum.

Fully automated accruals system based on purchase order and good/services received information 

held within a fully integrated accounting system.

Budget holders have on-line, real-time insight into the status of their budget and can run standard 

financial and manpower reports through their desk top PC.

A needs based budget based on activity levels rather than historical baselines, is prepared at least 

every 3 years.

Customer satisfaction surveys are conducted at least annually with results openly published and acted 

upon.

FMP9

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (3)

Yes  (5)

FMP10

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (4)

Yes  (4)

FMP6

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (3)

Yes  (5)

FMP7

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No (1)

Yes  (7)

FMP8

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No  (5)

Yes  (3)

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 22 23/04/2013

Page 54



Section 5 - TABULAR DATA

City of London

Primary Indicators

Secondary Indicators

FS2(b)

FS4

Credit notes as % of total customer invoices raised

81.0% 88.4%

7.7%

71.2%

9.5%

81.4%

38.7% 43.5%

112.8

4.5%

81.7

% No

0% 100%

£11.66 £16.64

10

£14.71

£57.10

£5.15

94.5%

£2.59 £3.32

21.1%

88.7% 93.6% 95.4%

59.4%

43%

£75.75 £105.67

Cost of business decision support as a proportion 

of the cost of the finance function

Cycle time in days from date of year-end to 

submission of audited accounts

Debtors days

Proportion of all payments made by electronic 

means

Professionally qualified finance staff as a 

percentage of total finance staff (FTEs) 

undertaking reporting, controls and decision 

support processes (i.e. excludes those staff 

involved in transactional processes)

Cost of Accounts Payable per accounts payable 

invoice processed

Cost of Customer Invoicing function per customer 

invoice processed

39%

72.5%

2.3%

9.1%

34.7%

£14.13

0

37% 40%

58.4

52

No % Yes

60

31.3%

FP1(b)

FP2

FP1(c)

37%

Cycle time in working days from period-end 

closure to the distribution of routine financial 

reports to all budget managers and overseeing 

boards and committees

Cost of reporting and control as a proportion of 

the cost of the finance function
37%

37%

3 11 3 8 14

43%38% 37% 39%

FP1(a) 27%

Cost of the Finance function as a percentage of 

organisational running costs (expenditure)

26% 29% 22%

1.8% 1.1%

Cost of transaction processing as a proportion of 

the finance function

FP1

2.0%0.8%

66.3% 72.5% 78.8%

1.1%

36.3%

102

Average
Lower 

Quartile
Median

Upper 

Quartile

26.6%

1.3%1.2% 1.0%

FP3

FP4

% of variation between the forecast outturn and 

the actual outturn at month 12 (absolute values)

22.0

£13.57

No

na

na

29

Percentage of public sector organisation spend for 

which there are fully costed outputs which are 

measured by key performance metrics and for 

which a named individual is accountable

FS3

Were the last set of accounts qualified by external 

audit?

FS6

FS1

FS2(a)

FS5

FS10

98.3%

93.9%

FS8

FS9(b)

FS7

FS9(a)

Proportion of outstanding debt that is more than 

90 days old from date of invoice
12.3%

£88.08

% invoices for commercial goods & services paid 

by the orgainisation within 10 days of receipt
65.8%

Cost of Payroll Admin per employee paid

% invoices for commercial goods & services paid 

by the orgainisation within 30 days of receipt or 

within the agreed payment terms

£147.35

69.6%

91.4%

36.9%

32.7%

74

83.4

Yes

£5.52

7.8%

86.9%

£3.65

VfM Finance 2011/12 Page 23 23/04/2013Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	�
���������
	��	����	������������
���

�	�����	����	�

�������

��������	
��

�����������	
����������������������������

������������������

�
������������������
���

��� ������
�� ��
����!��

�"#$�%���
����&������

��'�!����(�����)�&�
��
)����*�+'&

��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 57



��	���	

����	1��������
0����2��������������
)�*�)�����������)������(0����
���
��

*������
�"����
��������33�0�4�0��!�
�����������������/��� ��������3��
��0���������

������������/�����3�����
����3���  �������/�0����0��������� �!��0���0���5�1#.6)�7����

�"#$������ ���
��)�7����  ��
��������
�����8������������0���
����/��� ��
��7��8�

�
�������������
0���� �!��������������� �����
�.�������5

����3�
0���
��0�/�����!������-3.��
��0������2�����
�0����
�)�$�
�
0�)��')�"��)�

&����)�9�������.�
�����
���
��#��0�����
�4���/��!��
����
��3����!������

6�/��
��
������� �������������3�����0���
���33�0��
0���� ��/���
����
���������
��

������0���3��������
�����/���
��3��
�:��
�����/�0��5��������������������
0����7����

8��
�3��� �!��0���0����!������������������
��0�����)��������0�����
�������33�����

!�
0����8�
�����/�0���������/��5��"#$����������3�����
�����8�
���� ��/���������

���/�0��������� �!��0���0���5

"��� �����������3�
�������
0�������
3�������
����3��)��
��������� ����
�������������

��������
������ ������
�7��0���������
��
���;���������������������� �������8����/��7��
�����

/�����3�����
��� ��/�����!�������0�� ��������  �������/�0��)��
�� ��/���������

 ��
�������������7�������������� ��/�5

�"#$�7�����!����������
���  �����0�����
�����0����7�������� ���
������  ����
������

3������������ ��/����������/�0��)�!�����
���
������
3�������
��
�������� ���5��#���������


�����������������/��<��
������0����0����2�����=���=���4��3�����7�������8��������0����

���������
����������������3������5

<����
�.�
�

��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 58



� �!�"��#$�#$ ��%& 

 ����'������	�����	��� �'���
������������
���

� � � � � �
�

�
&(�2�4 &(�2!4 &(= &(� &(+ &(� &(>2�4 &(>2!4

��
�����
����&(� ���	�������
��	�

� � �
���������
�� 	��� &(�

*�����

(

(

(

������
��������
��0����� ��3����
0���
�����!����?�������;��������7��������
��0�����

 ��3����
0��!��7��
����������
��
��!����?�������;��
���!����������
��0�����

 ��3����
0��!��7��
����������
��
��7�����?���������
���������������
��0�����

 ��3����
0���
�����7�����?�������

3������� �� ������3�������� ���)������0�����
����7� ����0��/��������0�
�������� ���5�

��7�/��)�7���00� ��������������
����������
��
��������
������0��0�����
0���

����
������
��0�
�0����������
/����������
�3�
0���
��!�0������������/���
����

�
/�������
����� �������!�0����������7�
����� ��0�� ����0������� �������
���

3�
0���


3�������0�� ���
���3������
��0�������������7
��
����������
�����3�������� ���

�����������
0������/��� ����
��  ���0�����0�
������
��-�����3���.�
���3������ ������(��/�0���

7��0������3��������
���
�5������/���������������������7
�!���7�

#����� ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 59



�	�
������(� #$#�)�%$*� ++�� $)

������
����
,	��	�����	����	������
�����������

������3�&�
��


��
����*���	�	��	

$���������
�2@A���4 $������7���?��������2@A���4

 ����'�	���������	

-./�.0

�1.23

-�/4��

���5�6����
����
,	��	�����	����	������
��������	��	�
��	����

��������
�����������������
�

��������7��������
������/������� ����
����!��������33���
0���
� ��0�
�����3�������������
�

2�
����7���?�������45�$�/����!���/����
0����������7
����
�����/��3������5

	B

�17.3

�����0������
/���������������������
��� �!��7��
�0�����
����C���3���������
������
5���������������

�
��0����
������/��������������
������
����
������������������ �� �����
��3�������������0����
�����

&�����(��/�0���3�
0���
5

�10�3

������� &B .����


�18�3�����

9���
��	

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5=D

�5+D

�5�D

�5�D

�5>D

�5�D
���5�6

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5=D

�5+D

�5�D

�5�D

�5>D

�5�D

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

��������������:��/����
��0������3�����0���:�33�0��/�
�����3�����������3�
0���
5��"
������

0��0�����
0�������
������
��7����������������0��������������0������/�������5���7�/��)�

����
������
��������0���� �������
���������������
������������33�0��/�
�����3�����������3�
0���
�

23����E�� ����
��0�������)�=����
��>4��
�������� �
��������
����������/�0������
�����!�
0����8�

3��������� ����)�7����7�������0�
������7��������E�����
/�����
��7�������0����!������/�����3���

��
��5

����
������
�������� �
����������
������� ��������
������
������7�������0�
������7������������

���!�0����)�3����E�� ��)��������/���!�/���/�������0��������
����33�0��/�
����0�����������

7�����������������0� ��3����33�0��
0����/�
���23����E�� ����/���
0���!������� �� �����
������

�����0�����3�����
�
���
����/��� ��
�)��
��0�����+45

�1�3

�173

�1�3

�173

�1�3

�173

.1�3

.173

81�3

8173

71�3

�1� �17 �1� �17 �1� �17 .1�

#�������
����������������
��-;��

�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�3

��
��
#
�


����������
������
� ������3�&�
��


#����� ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 60



������3�&�
��


��
����*���	�	��	

$���������
�2@A���4 $������7���?��������2@A���4

 ����'�	���������	

�1.43

���5�6����
����
,	��	�����	����	������
�����	
��������'	����

�	��	�
��	������������
�����������������
�

�����0������
/���������������������
��� �!��7��
�0�����
����C���3���������
������
5���������������

�
��0����
������/��������������
������
����
������������������ �� �����
��3�������������0����
�����

&�����(��/�0���3�
0���
5

-�/..� -�/7<8

������� &B

��������7��������
������/������� ����
����!��������33���
0���
� ��0�
�����3�������������
�

2�
����7���?�������45�$�/����!���/����
0����������7
����
�����/��3������5

.����
 	B

������1<�3 �1823�1..3

9���
��	

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5=D

�5+D

�5�D

�5�D

�5>D
���5�6

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5=D

�5+D

�5�D

�5�D

�5>D

�1�3

�173

�1�3

�173

�1�3

�173

.1�3

.173

81�3

8173

71�3

�1� �17 �1� �17 �1� �17 .1�

#�������
����������������
��-;��

�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
5
�
	

6
��
�
�3

��
��
#
�


����������
������
� ������3�&�
��


#����= ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 61



�

 '����		����
� ��
����������5-;���6

 '����		����
�

 :
	������	�����	����	�

 :
	������	�����	����	� �"����
�

%���''���
���

������	��������'���	�

�"����
� �����������������
����

�	�������=��	�	���'	�


#
,	�����
�

%���''���
��� "�
������������


 :
	���������'	

������	��������'���	�

"�
����	
����


�����������������
���� #�������
�����������������
�

�	�������=��	�	���'	�


#
,	�����
�

-�1�. �����

-�1��

-218� �����

+���	��,��	��,'��>�
?�������	����	����	�/�
,	�����
��	����
,	���������
���;��

���
�����
,	��	�����5����
�����6����
,	���������	���	1

-<1�0 �����

4�����������

<77�������

2�0�

7.2/<���

8/.8��

-�1�� ���		

���



-�1�8 �����

./882����

�	�����	����	����
�-;����#�������
���������������
���������

"�
������������


�
���-�170

7�����������

.7<�������

8/07�����

"�
����	
����


 :
	���������'	

-01�� �����

-�1�. �����

-�124

-�1�<

�7��������

���
�

(������������

���

 �0����������

#����+ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 62



#�"�� ��-;����#�&%$��%"�#$%���!$$�$&�#�"�

����,���0�����

 :
	������	�����	����	�

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

"�
������������


@�

@�

@�

@�

@�

@=

@+

@�

@�

@>

@��

%���''���
���

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5+�

@�5��

�����������������
����

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

#
,	�����
�

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5+�

@�5��

@�5��

 '����		����
�

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@+5��

@�5��

�"����
�

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

������	��������'���	�

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5=�

�	�������=��	�	���'	�


@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@�5�=

 :
	���������'	

@�5��

@�5=�

@�5��

@�5=�

"�
����	
����


@�5��

@�5��

@�5��

@+5��

@�5��

@��5��

#����� ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��

P
age 63



����",	����
������(,���	�����	:
	������������	���	����?��>

������3�&�
��


������3�&�
��


���5�6��",	����
����	:
	������������	���	����?��>������

�	��	�
��	����
,	�
�
����	��������
�������


������� 	B

<7183<�143 ����� 421�3 <�1�3

�
���

&B .����


�2123 ��183

���5�6��",	����
����
,	���(,���	��	��������
����������	��	�
��	����


,	�
�
����	��������
�������


������� &B .����
 	B

�<1�3�41.3

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

��������������:��/����
��0������3�����0�����3��
:�������
���E���
���������0���������7��85��������
�

������7��8�7����!���E���
���������0��)�3����E�� ��)�7������
�����
������
���?������� �0�������

��������/�0��
����/����!����
:�����������������7���� ��8���
�����������3�7��85������
������
��

������ �
����������
������� ��������
������
���
��E���
���������0���������7��8�����7�������

0�
������7�������������E��3�7��8���
���
:�������
���E���
���������0����� ����
����33�0��/��

�
���33�0��
�������3�������0��5

���5�6

�5�D

��5�D

��5�D

��5�D

��5�D

=�5�D

+�5�D

��5�D

��5�D

>�5�D

���5�D

���5�6

�5�D

��5�D

��5�D

��5�D

��5�D

=�5�D

+�5�D

��5�D

��5�D

>�5�D

���5�D

#����� ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 64



��7���
����
,	��	��������
�����	��	'����		

������3�&�
��


��<���
��	��,������������������	����?��>

������3�&�
��


-��� ��� -7� -2�

	B

&B .����


-770-.22

.����


-22

	B

-�/8�8 ��
�

������� &B

-8.0

�������

��7

@�

@���

@���

@+��

@���

@�)���

@�)���

@�)���

@�)+��

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

"
������0��0�����
0�������
������
��7����������������0��������������0������/�������5���7�/��)�

����
������
��������0���� �������
���������������
����������������33�0��/�
�����3�����������

3�
0���
�23����E�� ����
��0���������
���4�7����7�������0�
������7��������E�����
/�����
��7�����

��0����!������/�����3�����
��5

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

������
��0������3�����0���:�33�0��/�
�����3�����������3�
0���
�0�� ����
����
��0�������)����
���5��

����
������
���������0�� �����������������3���������
��0�����7���������� ����)��
/��������
������

�����
��3����
�����
�3�0�
����33���
0��5

��<

@�

@��

@��

@+�

@��

@���

@���

@���

@�+�

@���
9���
��	

@�

@��

@��

@+�

@��

@���

@���

@���

@�+�

@���

9���
��	

@�

@���

@���

@+��

@���

@�)���

@�)���

@�)���

@�)+��

#����> ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 65



�	�
������(����%"

�

������3�&�
��


������3�&�
��


&B

�143

�1��

	B������� &B .����


�1�2�1�� ���	 �1��

��2���
�����	������������	�	���'	�
���
���
������	��	�
��	����


,	�
�
������(����

��4�"�
�����'�	�������'�����
���	�	��	���	���	����	'����		

	B

�173 ���� �173

.����


�103

�������

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

������/����3��0��/�����
�����
�
���
����/��� ��
���
��0�������������
������
A��0�������
�����

�
��
0�
������0� �0�����������/����
���� ��/�5

����0�������������������
�
���
����/��� ��
���0��/�����
0����
��7������  �� �����)��!���
�
��0�
��
��
��

 ��3�����
�����/��� ��
��2�#F4������5������
������
���������0�� ������������������7���������� ����)�

�
/��������
�����������
��3����
�����
�3�0�
����33���
0��)���8�
���
����00��
��3�0�������0������
��

��33���
0���
������/��������������3��E ����
0��7����
�����7��83��0���
�����
�/����3����335

9���
��	

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5+D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5�D

�5+D
��2

�5��D

�5��D

�5��D

�5+�D

�5��D

�5��D

�5��D

�5��D

�5+�D

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

����
������
���������0�� ������������������7���������� ����)��
/��������
�����������
��3����
��

���
�3�0�
����33���
0��)���8�
���
����00��
��3�0�������0������
����33���
0���
������� ���3�������7��8�

!��
�� ��/����5������
������
��7�������������0���/���� �����:�
: ����������0���
��
�����
��!����3�

0�� ���
�����0��/��5������
������
�����������/��0����� ��0�������3�����0����
���
�������
��7����

0�� ���
��5

��4

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5�+

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5�+
9���
��	

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5�+

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5��

�5�+

#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 66



������3�&�
��


������3�&�
��


�12 ��� .17 81�

��05�6����
�������	�����
����5+" 6�
��������
��
����5+" 6

810

������� &B 	B.����


�������

��05�6����
������@������	���	����	'����		��5+" 6�
��
�
����	����

	'����		��5+" 6

473743 4�3

	B&B

�� 2�3

.����


��0���
������@������	���	�����
����5+" 6�
��
�
����	�����
����5+" 6

��0���
�������	�����
����5+" 6�
��������
��
����5+" 6

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

������
��0������������������0� �0�����
��0�� ���
0���3�����������3�
0���
�!���E���
�
������ �� �����
�

�3����33�7������ ��3�����
���������?����3�0����
5��&����� ����

���7����
�!��������0�
�����������3�
0���
�

�
���������� �������
������� ������3���������
������
��������!���
0�����5

����
������
���������0�� ������������������7���������� ����)��
/��������
�����������
��3����
��

���
�3�0�
����33���
0��)���8�
���
����00��
��3�0�������0������
����33���
0���
������� ���3�������7��8�

!��
�� ��/����5������
������
��7����������0������������������7��8�7������ ������C���������
�3��������

�
��0����5

��05�6

�D

��D

��D

��D

��D

=�D

+�D

��D

��D

>�D

���D

��05�6

�5�

�5�

�5�

�5�

�5�

=5�

+5�

�5�

�5�

>5�

��5�
9���
��	

�5�

�5�

�5�

�5�

�5�

=5�

+5�

�5�

�5�

>5�

��5�

9���
��	

�D

��D

��D

��D

��D

=�D

+�D

��D

��D

>�D

���

D

#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 67



�	�
����.�(��%"��+%"�#$

������3�&�
��


*��!����3�'�� �
���G

������3�&�
��


*��!����3�'�� �
���G

���	������	������	
��	����

	B

818

������� &B .����


��.5�6��''������	����
�����
������	���	�����	

	�� .17 .10 81�

	�� 81�

A�%�! B

�������

.18

A�%�! B

&B

81�

��.5�6�!�	����
�����
������	���	�����	

.����
 	B

.1<

9���
��	

�

�

�

�

=
�''������	������	�

�

�

�

�

=

��
�����	�����	:�	�
	���'���
�����	,������

������
��0������E���
��������33�0��/�
�����3�����������3�
0���
�!���������
������ ��0� ���
���3�����

0��������
�����
�������5������������
�����/��!��
����
��3����!�0��������������0�
������������
��0����

7�����������3�
0���
�0����
�0������33�0��/����7��������0��������
�����
�������)��
�������� �
��/���������

��?������
����3���������
������
5���/�������)�����
������
������������8�����
0���������� �� �����
��3�

0��������
�����
��������������
��7���������������
��5��2����
������
������7��������
0�� ������������

�������
����
����E����
�����/�����3��������
��0��������
���45

9���
��	

�

�

�

�

=
!�	������	�

�

�

�

�

=

#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 68



�''������	������	�

(���
��������

����

*������

F�������

(���
����F�������

����	���
�
	'	�
�

H��������������/�0���3�
0���
� ��/�����?���������/�0��7����
������������3�����

H��������������/�0��0�
���!������33�0��/���������
���
����������
������
A�����8

H�&��������/�0��� ��/����/�����3�����
��

!�	������	�

(���
��������

����

*������

F�������

(���
����F�������

����	���
�
	'	�
�

H�������/�0�� ��/�����!��������7����7���0�
�����
���
��0����

H�������7����8� ������
3�������3� �������

H�������/�0��7��� ��/�����7����
����������������3����

H�������7���A����/�0��7���0�
����0��/�

�

H�������7����7����00����!����
�����������������
��0��
��
��
����

�

����	�

%�����������������������
�
	'	�
�����	�

�

H��������������/�0���3�
0���
�0�
���!������33�0��/���������������
������
A����/��
�
0�)� ��

�
��

�
�� ���0�� ��0�����

H��������������/�0�����0��� ��� ����7��
��������
�������7��
���
���0����33�0��/���������������

�������������

=

�

����	�

�

�

�

�

=

������0���������7������/������ ��3����
0���0�����3������� ����0� �
������!��08�EA�5�����!��08�������!����

���7��
�����
�������/�����
��������������3��������
5�  ��E��������+=�:���D��3����������
������
��7����

3����7����
��������
��5��������������
����������/�������0����3������������
������
5

�''������	������	�

�

�

�

�

=

0 1 2 3 4 5

����	���
�
	'	�


�
�
�
�	

6��� �/����� ������3�&�
��


!�	������	�

�

�

�

�

=

0 1 2 3 4 5

����	���
�
	'	�


�
�
�
�	

6��� �/����� ������3�&�
��


#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 69



�	�
����8�(��%$%& � $"���%"� ��$*�%"#��

��8������	'	�
�����
��	�������
���

������3�&�
��


�����

�����

����.

����8

����7

����2

����4

����<

����0

������

��173

��1��

D�I�� D�*�

�1�3

7<1.3

81�3

)	� 8�143

071<3

�8 �

��

�. �

	B

I�� *�

���1�3�8 �

��1�� ��� <1�� 01��

������� &B .����


� 0�143

)	�

<1.3

�.

)	� ���1�3 �1�3

�8

81�3

0�143

� 071<3

<1.3�� �

. <4173 ��173

)	� 81.3�� � 07143

. <4173��

)	�

)	�

)	�

)	�

)	�

)	� ��

��

�����	'	�
�����
��	�
�
�������	

�

�

�

+

�

��

��

� � � � � = + � � > ��

$�'�	�����'����	'	�
�����
��	���������	

$
�
'
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�

#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 70



�����

�����

����.

����8

����7
�����������
���������3������!���
���� ��

�
�� ��0����7��0��������7���������!�������������/���

 �����������
�����/�0��5

�����?������3������������/�0�������0�����
��������������������������/�0����
��5

�����������
�����33�0����
���������
������
�7����������0����������������������������
�����

0�� ��������
�����
������5

�����������
�������0�����������
���
������������/�0����
����/��� ���0�����:����������3�������

�
���
�����7����5

��������0����
�������������
� ��0���
���������������33���0�������������������
����������������5

�����

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

�����

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2��4

I����2��4

����.

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

����8

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

����7

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

#�����= ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 71



����2

����4

����<

����0

������
���������� ����
�����/��� ��
�� ��
��3����������������33���
8����������!���
���� ��

�
�� ��0����

�
����������
������
A���!J�0��/��5

���������� ��0�����3����8��������
�������� ����7��
� ��0����
���E���
������������/�0���

�
/��/�
��0�� �����/���
��������3���������/�
��0������
��!�
�3���5

������
����� �0�3�0����
2�4��00����������3��0�������E �0����
�����3������������/�0��5

������
�����/��A�/������
A�0�
���0���20�
���0����������/��
���E ������������������
0�������

A �� ������� ���
A45

�����������
����
�����8��� ������0���/��7��2���������!��

�����4��3����������������/�0���

����
����
�������
��������������
����
���0�
��
��������/��/�����3�����
��������������
������
5

����0

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

������

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

����2

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

����4

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

����<

�D ��D ��D ��D ��D =�D +�D ��D ��D >�D ���D

*���2�4

I����2��4

#�����+ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 72



�	�
����7�(�"%C!�%��*%"%

������3�&�
��


������
�����������

*��!����3�0�� ���
�����0��/��� ����������� �����

'������3����������33�2$�94������  �������33�2$�94

743

���

473

��05�6 �12 ��� .17 81� 810

��05�6
'������3�?����3������������ �������2$�94����������

�������� �������2$�94

-22

�1�2

��

�1�����	 �1��

2�3 4�3

-7� -2�

��4 �1��

��< ����� ���0������!������� -���

-8.0

�103

-770-.22

�173 �143����

-�/8�8 ��
�

���5�6
������3��E���
���������0���������7��8������D�

������������3�
0���
�0���

������3�����������3�
0���
� ����)������ ������

��2
������3�����
�
��K���/��� ��
���0��/�������D�

���������� ��:!���
�173

��7

���5�6

�<1�3�
��� ��183

������3������
:������&�����(��/�0���3�
0���
������

D�������������3�
0���
�0���

�41.3

<�1�3 <7183

�2123

<�143

�1<�3 �����

�10�3���5�6
������3�����&�����(��/�0���3�
0���
������D�

����
������
�����

�
��0����

������3�����&�����(��/�0���3�
0���
�2
��4������D�

����
������
�����

�
��0����
���5�6

<�143 421�3

�����

�������
&�7���

B�������

�1.23

�1..3 �1823�1.43

.����

	  ���

B�������

�18�3 �17.3

#������ ��,�+,����-$.�&�����(��/�0��
Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	�
���������
	��	����	������������
���

�������	�����	�

�������

��������	
��

��������	
�	�����������������


�������
��	
����	��
����

����������	����������


��������������� ���	
�	 �!�"#�$��

�
����� ������������
���

%�&����"'(()(" ����( "*)'*)"'(�
Page 75



��	���	

+���,-���
�����	.����/��
������������	 �#�� ���
���!���� ���
����.����	
��	
�

#������	������	
���
����00�.�1�.����	�
������������
�2������������0��	
�.���������

������������2�����0�����	����0������������2�.����.��������������.���.���3�-�&4 �5����

���������������	�� �5��������	��
�����	
����6������������.���	
�
�2������	��5��6��	
�

������
�����	.������������
���������������	�&���"''73

+���0�	.���	��.�2���
��������%0&��	
�.������/�����	�.����	� ���	�	.� ��� ���+ ����� �

8�������&�	����	���	
����.�����	�1���2�����	��
�	��0��
��������4�2��	��	�������

��������������0�����.���	��00�.��	.�������2���	����	
��������	�������.���0��������	�


���2���	�0��	�9��	�����2�.��3���������������
�����	.����5����6��	�0��������.���.����

��
����������������	
�.����� ������
�.�
�
�	�������00�������	.����6�	����2�.��

�������2��3����������������0�����	
����6�	�������2�
����������2�.��������������.���.���3

����������������0�	
������	.����
��	0�������	����0�� ��	
�������������	�����������������

����	�������������	�5��.���������	��	
�
:������������������������������6����2��5��	�����2�����

0�����	������2�
�
���������.��������������������2�.�� ��	
����2�
����������	�����������

��5����������������2�3

������5���
������������	����������.�����	
�
��.����5������������	������������	������

0���������������2����������2�.�� �����
�	��	������	0�������	��	������������3���������
��

	����������������2��;��	�!����.����.����/'"'7�<*��<$''1��0�����5���
���6�����
��.���������

����	����������������0������3

;����	�&�	


=���.�����0�&��6�����	
����
�.��=�2������	�

%�&����"'(()(" ����" "*)'*)"'(�
Page 76



�!�" #��$%�$%!��&'!

!�����������	�����	��� �����
������(�����
���

��������(� )*

� �

� �
� �

���(/��1 ���(/�1 ���" ���� ���* ���<

��
�����
�������$ ���	�������
��	�

�
���������	�� ,��� ���7

#�����

+

+

+

�����	�������	
�.��������0����	.���	����������>�������:��������5�������	
�.�����

���0����	.�����5��	�������
��	��	
������>�������:��	�������������	
�.�����

���0����	.�����5��	�������
��	��	
�5�����>���������	
�����
�������	
�.�����

���0����	.���	�����5�����>�������

0�����������������0������������ �����.�����	
���5����
�.��2��������.�	��
���
�����3�

��5�2�� �5���..���������������	����������	��	
�������	������.��.�����	.���

���	������	��.�	�.����������	2����������	�0�	.���	����.������������2���	
���

�	2����
��	���������������.����������5�	��������.�������.���������������	���0�	.���	

0����
��.������	���0������	
�.�������������5	��	����������	
����0������������

+�����
�����	.����
�2�����
��	�������.�����.�	��
���	�%�����0���&�	���0����������������2�.���

5��.����
�0����
���	���	�3�+����2���������������������5	�����5�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
�


%�&����"'(()(" ����� "*)'*)"'(�
Page 77



�	�
������+�!$%$�,�&%*�!--��!%,

�������
����
.	��������
���

������0���	
�	

��
����*���	�	��	

�������
��	�/?@'''1 �������5���>��������/?@'''1

!������	���������	

�/012

�A &�
��	

+����.������	2��������������������	��������5��	�.�����	
���B���0��������	������	3�+�������������

�	
�.����	������2�������������	������	����	
�������������������������	��0�������������.����	�����

���0�	.���	3

,A

�/032 ����� �/142 �/�02

�������

+�������5��������	������2������������	��
��������
�00���	.���	����.�	����0����������
��	�/�	
�

��5���>�������13���2��������2����	.����������5	����	����2��0�����3

+56� 576�

����8��9�������
�������	��	�
�(	������(�����
������������(����
��

8��������(� )*9

:���
��	

'3'

C

'3"

C

'3*

C

'3$

C

'3D

C

(3'

C

(3"

C

(3*

C

(3$

C

����8��9

'3'C

'3"C

'3*C

'3$C

'3DC

(3'C

(3"C

(3*C

(3$C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

�	������.��.�����	.������	������	��5���
����������
�.�����������.������2�������3���5�2���

���	������	��������.������������	����������
���	�
��������������00�.��2�	�����0��������0�	.���	�

/0����E���������������	
�.������* �< �$��	
�71��	
���������	
�������	�������	�������	.����6�0���

����������� �5����5�������.�	��
���5��������E�����	2�����	��5���
���.�����������2�����0�����	��3

���	������	����������	
���������	���������������	������	������5�������.�	��
���5���������������

��.���� �0����E����� ��������2���	����2���2������.�������	����00�.��2�	����.�����������5������

����������.����0����00�.��	.����2�	��/0����E�������2�
�	.�
������
�����������	����������.�����0�

��.������	������2�.�	.� ���.�	
�����	
�.�����<13

�/�2

�/�2

3/�2

1/�2

</�2

��/�2

��/�2

�/� �/� �/3 �/1 �/< �/� �/� �/3 �/1

$�(�����
������������(���
��5=��

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�2

��
��
$
�


���������	������	� ������0���	
�	

%�&����"'(()(" ����* "*)'*)"'(�
Page 78



����8�9�������
��	��-#!�8��������(� )*9

������0���	
�	

�������
������	�����		��
������
����8��������(� )*9

������0���	
�	

&�
��	 ,A

5�>�1�����	


������� �A &�
��	

564�

�A

,A

��7���

5<7�

7� <0 ���

5�>�30

�������

:���
��	

?'

?"''

?*''

?$''

?D''

?( '''

?( "''

?( *''

?( $''

?( D''

?" '''
����8�9���������(� )*

?'

?"''

?*''

?$''

?D''

?( '''

?( "''

?( *''

?( $''

?( D''

?" '''

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+������������9��2����	
�.������0�����.���9�00�.��2�	�����0��������0�	.���	�5��.��.�������	���

���������	
�.�����(3����	������	�������
�.��������������������0���������	
�.�����5��������������� �

�	2�������	����������	��0����	����	�0�.�	��
�00���	.��3�+���������
�������E���	���������������0���

������	
�.������	�.�	F�	.���	�5������������������0����00�.��2�	�����	
�.������/0����E��������������

�	
�.������* �< �$��	
�713

:���
��	

'

"'

*'

$'

D'

(''

("'

(*'
����

'

"'

*'

$'

D'

(''

("'

(*'

%�&����"'(()(" ����< "*)'*)"'(�
Page 79



�������
������	�����		��
�� )*��
���

������0���	
�	

�

�
��� ��
����������85=���9

�
���

�#

�# &��������
���

������	�����������	�

$�
�������(

&��������
��� �	����
�	�


 )*

$
.	�

������	�����������	� #�
��

$�(/�������(����
�

$�
�������(

-#!

$
.	���	����
�	�


 	�����(�����*	�	����	�
�8����9

$
.	�

�>�3������5�/��#�
�����


57/��

50/37 �����

-���	��.��	��.���?�
@����(��	����	�(��	�>�
.	�����
��	��(�
.	���(�����
���=��

���
�����
.	��	�����8����
�����9����
.	�(�������	��(	/

����

�>73������

+�������������

+�������������

+�������������

��04����<61

���

�����
�5=����$�(�����
����������(����
��8��������(� )*9�

�������

�������

�

5�/��

����


5�/�� �����

5�/33 �	��


5�/�� �����

�����5�/��

+�������������

�A &�
��	 ,A

+�������������

���
�

7</��������

5�/��

+�������������

4>0<������

7�0>177��������

�����

:���
��	

'

"''

*''

$''

D''

('''

("''

����

'

"''

*''

$''

D''

( '''

( "''

( *''

%�&����"'(()(" ����$ "*)'*)"'(�
Page 80



���$�#��!��5=����$�'&%��&#�$%& ��"%%�%'�$�#��8�% "*�%'� )*9

"'(()("��.�����
�
���

?'

?"

?*

?$

?D

?('

������	�����������	�

?'3''

?'3<'

?(3''

?(3<'

?"3''&��������
���

?'3''

?'3('

?'3"'

?'3�'

?'3*'

?'3<'

�#

?'3''

?'3"'

?'3*'

?'3$'

?'3D'

?(3''

?(3"'

$�
�������(

?'3''

?'3"'

?'3*'

?'3$'

?'3D'

$
.	��

?'3''

?'3<'

?(3''

?(3<'

?"3''

?"3<'

?�3''

?�3<'

#�
��

?'

?"

?*

?$

?D

?('

?("

?(*

?($

$
.	���	����
�	�
����
�

?'3''

?'3"'

?'3*'

?'3$'

?'3D'

?(3''

 	�����(������	�	����	�
�

���
��8����9

?'3''

?(3''

?"3''

?�3''

?*3''

?<3''

?$3''

?73''

%�&����"'(()(" ����7 "*)'*)"'(�

P
age 81



������0���	
�	

����8�9�������
��	��-#!�8	;������(� )*9

������0���	
�	

�������
������	�����		��
������
����8	;������(� )*9

������0���	
�	

�3�77 ��� 60 ��3

������� �A &�
��	 ,A

����8���9�������
�������	��	�
�(	������(�����
������������(����
��

8	;������(� )*9

�/7�2�/7�2 ����� �/412 �/342

������� �A &�
��	 ,A

&�
��	 ,A

5<4< ���� 53<1 57�6

�������

51<3

�A

����

'

"'

*'

$'

D'

(''

("'

(*'

($'

:���
��	

'3'

C

'3(

C

'3"

C

'3�

C

'3*

C

'3<

C

'3$

C

����8���9

'3'C

'3(C

'3"C

'3�C

'3*C

'3<C

'3$C

����8�9�	;������(� )*

?'

?(''

?"''

?�''

?*''

?<''

?$''

?7''

?D''

?G''
:���
��	

?'

?(''

?"''

?�''

?*''

?<''

?$''

?7''

?D''

?G''

:���
��	

'

"'

*'

$'

D'

(''

("'

(*'

($'

%�&����"'(()(" ����D "*)'*)"'(�
Page 82



�	��������������
���

�������
�����(	�����
����������	��	�
�(	����
�
�����������

������0���	
�	

���7���
�����	����
�	�
��	�����
�����	�

������0���	
�	

,A

</32 ���� 7/�2 0/32 </<2

������� �A &�
��	

,A

�� �����
 5�>134 5�>134 5�>66�

������� �A &�
��	

:���
��	

'3'

C

"3'

C

*3'

C

$3'

C

D3'

C

('3'

C

("3'

C

(*3'

C

($3'

C

����

'3'C

"3'C

*3'C

$3'C

D3'C

('3'C

("3'C

(*3'C

($3'C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

�����	.���	���	.�����00�.�	��	.������.�������	�0�.�	�����	
�	���	�.����������������	��2�����0���

��	��3�&�������	������	��5���
������0�������������
�.���������������	��0����������9��������	���	�

��	.�����00������������������/�0�.�����1�	��
����������	.�����00������
��00�.�������	���

2������������	�5��6���
�����.���������������	���.�3

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����.�������	�����.�	
�����	
�.�����*3�!��������	������	�������
������������������
�.�������	���

.�����0���.������	� �����������
��E���	��������������0�������	
�.������	�.�	F�	.���	�5������������

�	
�.�����*�/���2������������������	��0����������001��	
���.�	
�����	
�.�����7�/�������.�	�����0�

���00��������	�������0����("���	���13�!��������	������	�����	
�������	���.������	�����	�������������

������2������5��2��������00�����	���	����������5�������.�	��
���5��������E�����	2�����	���	�

��.������	�������6��������00����������2�����0�����	��3

���7

?'

?<''

?( '''

?( <''

?" '''

?" <''

?� '''
:���
��	

?'

?<''

?( '''

?( <''

?" '''

?" <''

?� '''

%�&����"'(()(" ����G "*)'*)"'(�
Page 83



�	�
������+����&#

�

������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

,A

,A

���3� 	��	������
.	����
��	���������	��	�
�(	����
.	���	��(	�
�
���

�/� �/7 �/<�/< ���

������� �A

��/�2

���4�&�	��(	�������	������+
��	�	A�����	�
�	�����		��	���	���

���	�
	������	�����(������	�	����	�


1/72 ���
� 0/�2 ��/32

������� �A &�
��	

&�
��	

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����	2�����	���	�����	�	��	
�
�2������	���	
�.������������	������	H��.�������	������	��	.�	�����

.���.�������
���2����	
������2�3����	������	�������
�.��������������������0���������	
�.�����5����������

����� ��	2�������	����������	��0����	����	�0�.�	��
�00���	.�� ���6�	��	����..��	��0�.�������.������	�


�00���	.���	������2�����
������0��E�����	.��5����	�����5��60��.���	
����	�2����0����003�+����

�	
�.��������.���������	6�
������.�	
�����	
�.�����(�/����.�����0�����	�	��	
�
�2������	���.��2���13

:���
��	

'3'

'3<

(3'

(3<

"3'

"3<
���4

'3'

'3<

(3'

(3<

"3'

"3<

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+�����	
�.����������������6�������������������0�����5��60��.�3���������	�2����	��	����	������	����

�..����
������������������������2����0����	�2���.�	��	
�.��������������	����	������	������
������ �

.��������	
���	����	���	
�.�	�����.���	����	������	������0����	.��/0����E�������������������0�

.���.��� �������0�2���������6������	
�6	�5��
����.13����	������	������5�������.����������������	�2���

������5��������������� ��E���	�	�5�����������������������������	��0����	����	�0�.�	��
�00���	.��3��	�

�����.��.�����	.������	������	��5���
����6������
�.���������.�	�����0����2�����2�������3

���3

'C

<C

('C

(<C

"'C

"<C

�'C
:���
��	

'C

<C

('

C

(<

C

"'

C

"<

C

�'

C

%�&����"'(()(" ����(' "*)'*)"'(�
Page 84



������0���	
�	 ,A

���

�A &�
��	

0/40/� 6/<</0

���7�&�	��(	�@��?��(�������	��	�����		�8�����
��	�	A�����	�
9��	��

�	������
�
.���(.����?�	������	��	

�������

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

���6����������00�.��2�	�����0��������0�	.���	��	��������0�����.���	������2��������2�����0���.6	����

����	.���	��������	������	��������
�2������	���0����.�������	
����.�
���� ��	
�����	�	�0���

��	����3����	������	�������
����������
�.������	�������0�
������������������.6	��������	.���2���

����3

:���
��	

'

"

*

$

D

('

("

(* ���7

'

"

*

$

D

('

("

(*

%�&����"'(()(" ����(( "*)'*)"'(�
Page 85



�	��������������
���

������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	 ,A

&�
��	������� �A

�/32

,A

�������
�����	�����(������	�	����	�
���
���
������	��	�
�(	����


.	�
�
������+����

�/�2

������� �A

�/�2 ��
� �/�2

���4��	��	�
�(	�������
������	�
������
.	��	��	��.������
.	�

��(�����
����@.��.���	�����	������	���	�@.����	���
��	����	�
����


.�
�����
���

&�
��	

3/42 ���� 7/�2 0/�2 6/12

����

'3'C

'3<C

(3'C

(3<C

"3'C

"3<C
:���
��	

'3'C

'3<C

(3'C

(3<C

"3'C

"3<C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+�����2����0��E��	
�������	�����	�	��	
�
�2������	���	
�.������������	������	H��.�������	�����

�	��	.�	�����.���.�������
���2����	
������2�3+����.�������	������������	
�.�������/�2�����
����

�	2����
��	�����	�	��	
�
�2������	��������������13��	������.��������	������	�������
�.�������

��������������5��������������� ��	2�������	����������	��0����	����	�0�.�	��
�00���	.�� ���6�	��	���

�..��	��0�.�������.������	��
�00���	.���	������2�����
������0��E�����	.��5����	�����5��60��.���	
�

���	�2����0����003��	���	��.��������	������	��5���
���������.���2���������
9�	9�����
��	.�������	�

�������	2�����	���	�����	�	��	
�
�2������	���.��2���3

���4

'C

"C

*C

$C

DC

('C

("C

(*C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+���
������0������������0��������
��������0��	����	������	������.����.���0��������	��������0�

���	������	������0����	.���	
�.������3����	������	�����0����	���������9����������2�����	
������2��

����	�0�.�	�����������	��0�	�	9�����	�	�����00��	����
��������������	�3��	������.��������	������	��

5���
������0�������������
�.���������.�	�����0�	�	9�����	�	�����00��	����
��������������	�3

:���
��	

'C

"C

*C

$C

DC

('

C

("

C

(*

C

%�&����"'(()(" ����(" "*)'*)"'(�
Page 86



������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

16/7

,A�A &�
��	�������

���3�&�	��(	�	����	��
��	�8@��?��(�����9����������������

��������(�
��
.	����	�
���	����������	������
.	����	����


<0/�

1/1

00/�

&�
��	

���

�������

1�/<���

�A

�/7 4/3 7/4

���1��	���
	����B���	�>����	��	���������(	�����������	��	���	��

�>����-#!��	���	��

,A

���3

'

('

"'

�'

*'

<'

$'

7'

D'

G'

(''

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+��������	��	
�.������0��00�.��	.��0�����6���������.����I���.������	�����0����2�.�	�������3����	������	��

�����
��	����������������
�.������	�������0�5��6�	�
����	��
�
����0����2�.�	�������3+�����	
�.�����

.�������	�����.�	
�����	
�.�����<3

:���
��	

'

('

"'

�'

*'

<'

$'

7'

D'

G'

(''

���1

'

(

"

�

*

<

$

7

D

G

('

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+������������������00�.��2�	�����0��������	������	H����������	
���0�������.�
����3����	������	��

5���
��E��.������.���2���������
9�	9�����
���
�.���	��	�����	�������0��	.�
�	�����������

���	������	���������	��E����������5�0������.������
��������������������5�������.�	��
���5�������

��������2�	���..����	.�������.����.�����������
3

:���
��	

'

(

"

�

*

<

$

7

D

G

('

%�&����"'(()(" ����(� "*)'*)"'(�
Page 87



������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

�A ,A

���0��	��	�
�(	�����	���	�
.�
���	��
����������
���
	��������
.��

�	� 032

�������

���<���	��������������������
�����	���>����	�����		�

<�2

&�
��	

002012

�</3

,A&�
��	

��/�

������� �A

���	 ��/6

���0

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

7'C

D'C

G'C

(''C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+�����2����0����	�2����	�����0��������������	��	
�.������0������00�.��2�	�����0��������	������	H��

��.������	���	
��	
�.���	����.�����3�+�������.���������	6�
�������������	
�.�����*�/���2���������

���������	��0����������0013����	������	��5���
��E��.������.���2���������
9�	9�����
��	.�������	�����

	�������0���������������	�������0����("���	���3

���<

'

<

('

(<

"'

"<

�'

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+���������������E��	�����5��.��.���������)���0����	.���	
�.�	
�.�������.��2������	��
3�

���	������	��5���
����������E��.������.���2���������
9�	9�����
���
�.���	��	�����	�������0�.����3�

��5�2���5�����	��.����������.���	�
����5���������	���������.�	��
���������������	�0���������5����	��

������	�������������E���	����	 ����	������	������5��������	2��������5���������	���������.����.����

������	�
��.����	�������.�
����3

:���
��	

'

<

('

(<

"'

"<

�'

:���
��	

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

7'C

D'C

G'C

(''

C

%�&����"'(()(" ����(* "*)'*)"'(�
Page 88



������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

7�2

�A

���6��	��	�
�(	�����
����@.���	�	��	�8�
��	��
9��������������	�
��

���	��	��������	����������

,A

,A&�
��	

��� 732 6�2

&�
��	�������

�72 ��� 3�2 302

�������	��	�
�(	�����	��	��.������
��������	�����@��	�

������� �A

���2 ���2

���6

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

7'C

D'C

G'C

(''C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+��������������.�2������0��	
�2�
�������0����	.����	����	�����.�������.������������	������	3�

���	������	�������
����������2����5��
���.���2�	�(''�����.�	��0���������	
�.�����/�����.��������	�

�����.���0������������	�	�����0013

�����

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����	��������������	������.���2���	���0��>��������0��������	�����	���������	��0������
������������3�

���	������	�������
�.��������������.���2���	�����	���������	
�.�����5�����������������	
 ��	������

.���� ������
����6������.�����������
9�	9�����
��	.�������	������.���0�������	
�.����3

:���
��	

'C

('

C

"'

C

�'

C

*'

C

<'

C

$'

C

:���
��	

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

7'C

D'C

G'C

(''

C

%�&����"'(()(" ����(< "*)'*)"'(�
Page 89



������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

������� ,A

�A &�
��	 ,A

�������	��	�
�(	����	�����		��@.��������	��
.	��	��	��
��.��	���

��������
�

�A &�
��	

�������

��	� 4/�2 4/02

�������	��	�
�(	����	�����		���(	��7�������	�

4/12 7/02

47/1247/12 		�
� �6/02 43/32

�����

'C

(C

"C

�C

*C

<C

$C

7C

DC

GC

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����	��������������	������.���2���	���0��>��������0��������	�����	���������	�3����	������	��

�����
�.��������������.���2���	�����	���������	
�.�����5����������0��������������	
�.�	��
�����5�����

.���������	��0�������5��60��.���������2����5��
�����������	����� �0����E����� ���������

�������	����2���0�����.����	������������2�3

�����

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����	��������������	������.���2���	���0��>��������0��������	�����	���������	�3����	������	��

�����
�.��������������.���2���	�����	���������	
�.�����5����������0��������������	
�.�	��
�����5�����

.���������	��0�������5��60��.���������2����5��
�����������	����� �0����E����� ���������

�������	����2���0�����.����	������������2�3

:���
��	

'C

(C

"C

�C

*C

<C

$C

7C

DC

GC

%�&����"'(()(" ����($ "*)'*)"'(�
Page 90



������0���	
�	 ������� ,A

41/�2

�A &�
��	

����4��	��	�
�(	����C���?�����������
��!
.����8C�!9�	�����		�����


.	�@��?����	

�7/72 	��
� 31/<2�3/12

����4

'C

('C

"'C

�'C

*'C

<'C

$'C

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+����	��������������	������.���2���	���0��>��������0��������	�����	���������	�3����	������	��

�����
�.��������������.���2���	�����	���������	
�.�����5����������0��������������	
�.�	��
�����5�����

.���������	��0�������5��60��.���������2����5��
�����������	����� �0����E����� ���������

�������	����2���0�����.����	������������2�3

%�&����"'(()(" ����(7 "*)'*)"'(�
Page 91



�	�
����4�+��&#��-&#�$%

������0���	
�	

������0���	
�	

���18�9����������	����
�����
������	��(	�����	

������� �A &�
��	 ,A

4/7��

4/4

������� �A &�
��	 ,A

	��

���18�9�"�	����
�����
������	��(	�����	

4/� 4/���

	�� 4/34/4

:���
��	

(

"

�

*

<
���������	������	�

(

"

�

*

<

��
�����	�����	;�	�
	�������
�����	.������

+�����	
�.������E���	��������00�.��2�	�����0��������0�	.���	�����������	��������.�����	���0�����

.��������	�����	
������3�+����	
�.��������2�����	��
�	��0��
���.��������������.�	��
���
����

�	
�.����5�����������0�	.���	�.����	�.������00�.��2����5��������.��������	�����	
������ ��	
����

�����	��2�����������>������	����0��������	������	3

�2������� ����	������	�������
����6�����	.�������������������	��0�.��������	�����	
������������	�

5���������������	��3

:���
��	

(

"

�

*

<
"�	������	�

(

"

�

*

<

%�&����"'(()(" ����(D "*)'*)"'(�
Page 92



���������	������	�

< ����	�������

* ����

� #������

" =������

����	���=������

����	���
�
	�	�
�

J�+������0�	.���	����������
���2�����0��������	������	H���������.���F�.��2��

J�+������0�	.���	����2�
���>��������
2�.��5��	���	��
���

J�+������0�	.���	��	�������������

��������������	����	��������

J�+������0�	.���	��	��.��������������	������	H��5��60��.����������	
��

�����������

J�+������0�	.���	����2�
���2�����0�����	��

"�	������	�

< ����	�������

* ����

� #������

" =������

����	���=������

����	���
�
	�	�
�

J�+������	������	���6�������5���9���	��0����00����������

J�����.��2������������������	�	��	
�
�2������	���	��������	�������	��
�

J���6	�5�5�����������0�����2����>�����������	�����	���������

+�����.���������5������2��������0����	.���.�����0������������.���	���������.6�E@�3�+������.6�������

��������5��	�����	
��
�
�2�����	����������
���0��������	3������E��������$<�9�7'C��0������

���	������	��5����0����5����	��������	�3�+�����
�
����	
���������2������.����0�����������	������	3

J�+����������������.������������������������������F�.��2���5��.����6��.�����

5��������E��.��
��0���

(

����	�

(

J�+������	������	��00����0��E���������	������	��	
���	�0���������	��5��.����6��

�..��	���0�����
�00���	��	��
���0����00

����	�

&�����������������������
�
	�	�
�����	�

���������	������	�

(

"

�

*

<

' ( " � * <

����	���
�
	�	�


�
�
�
�	

4������2���� ������0���	
�	

"�	������	�

(

"

�

*

<

' ( " � * <

����	���
�
	�	�


�
�
�
�	

4������2���� ������0���	
�	

%�&����"'(()(" ����(G "*)'*)"'(�
Page 93



�	�
����3�+��&%&'!�!%#���&#�!��%*�&#$��

���0�����(	�	�
�����
��	�������
���

������0���	
�	

�����

�����

����4

����3

����7

����1

����0

����<

����6

������

,	�

,	�

,	�

%�

,	�

%�

,	�

,	�

,	�

00/<2 ��/�2

0

< � <</62

<

,	�

K�� #�

�/�2

C�K��

6 � ���/�2

������� �A &�
��	 ,A

�

� 00/<2

</��

C�#�

��/�2

44/42

</�� ���� 0/�� </��

� <</62

��/�2

0

��/�2

�/�2

4 1

� 00/<2

6 � ���/�2

11/02

4 1

��/�2

�/�26 � ���/�2

44/42 11/02

0

����(	�	�
�����
��	�
�
�������	

'

(

"

�

*

<

$

' ( " � * < $ 7 D G ('

%���	���������(	�	�
�����
��	���������	

%
�
�
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
(
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�

%�&����"'(()(" ����"' "*)'*)"'(�
Page 94



�����

�����

����4

����3

+��������������������09���2�.���������
��6�����..���������
�0��	�	9��	����2�����
���

����������������2��.������	
���������������.��������
����������������������		�����

!����	�������������������������������	.���	�������2��5�
��	
������	�����
�����	�������0�������0�

+������	
���	
����	���	������	��������	������	����<C

+������	������	������	
����6�	��>�����������.����������	����.���������6������2�.��������5����	�

�������������������� ��	
�����������	��	��	��.���	����	�5��.����������������0�2��	���������

�����

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/'1

K����/G1

�����

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/"1

K����/71

����4

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/"1

K����/71

����3

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/(1

K����/D1

%�&����"'(()(" ����"( "*)'*)"'(�
Page 95



����7

����1

����0

����<

����������������2����
���0����� �
�.���	��
����0����	.����2��5�����������	��	��		����������

5��.��.�	����.6������	��)���0�����	��������2���	�

+������	������	�.����������������2����0����00������0�.���	���2����������������		����� ���������������

������� �����
�2�����
��	��.���	����	��	
���	������
���2�����0���������	��	������������>���������

�����

+������	������	��E���.�������>���������������������
�.�����������������2��.������
�5�����	��

��	��	��������0�����	���=�2������	��/��=1���>������	����0����������0�����	����	��������/5�����

�����.����1

+������	������	��������������	��5��.���	��.�����������5��60��.����>������	����0�����

���	������	��2���������
���9�����/����������������1��	
��	��.���	����	�����
��������

8E�.���2�)�����������&�	����	��+����5��.�������������5���������>������	������������	
����

��	�����
��	���$���	�������������0��>��	�������

����7

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/(1

K����/D1

����1

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/'1

K����/G1

����0

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/$1

K����/�1

����<

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/"1

K����/71

%�&����"'(()(" ����"" "*)'*)"'(�
Page 96



����6

������

��.�������	��2�����0�����	���
�2������	���������������	����.��0������0�����	���������00�5��.��

�	������������������.��2�����������<�
�����0�.�	��	��	����0�����	���
�2������	�������		��

�������������������������	��	��0�������2�.�	.����0���5��.���E���	��������.����	�������	2���


����6

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/$1

K����/�1

������

'C ('C "'C �'C *'C <'C $'C 7'C D'C G'C (''C

#���/'1

K����/G1

%�&����"'(()(" ����"� "*)'*)"'(�
Page 97



�	�
����7�+�#&C" &��*&#&

������0���	
�	

��������������
���

������0��������0�	.���	�����0���/�	.��
�	��L=1

������0��������0�	.���	�����0���/�E.��
�	��L=1

�������0��������������������00�/�	.��
�	��L=1

�������0��������������������00�/�E.��
�	��L=1

�������0���������������L=����00

�	��������������
���

������0���	.�����00������C��������������

������0���.������	�����������0����


�������0�
��.����	�����.���	�����( '''����������

C����
��������������..����
����5���	

C�������������
�<'�����2��

��04

�3�

�������
��5���

A�������

�/�02

���

����

�/7�2�/342

����	


�/012

�

���

53<1

60

<0

�/412

564�

����

���

�/032 �����

77

7�

5<4<

5�>�30

,�����

A�������

�/142

&�
��	

��� �/<

5<7�

51<3

5�>�1�

��7

57�6

����8��9
������0��������0�	.���	������C����	������	���

��		�	�.�����/�	.��
�	��L=1

���4

����8���9

����

����

����8�9

����

����8�9

�2�����
��������0���9������>��2���	�����������

����������	2����
��	�����	�	��	
�
�2������	�

6/<0/4 </0

��/32 ��/�20/�2���3
���2�����	��������������������C��0������2�����

���������00
1/72

�2�����5��6�	�
�������������������������������

���������.6	��������	.�
0/����7

����

��

�2�����������
������/
���1�0������2�.�	.��

�..����	���������..����	.���0��	��00���0�������

���������

<0/�

</32

���7

���3

�/32

���4
C��������	��������
�������5��.������0����
����

�������5�������	��������	�	���	�������������	
3/42 ����

�/�2����

</<2

�/�2

����

���0 012
C������������������������	�������0����("���	����

���2�.�

�������
��	F����� �
���������	
�
�	������

�..����	.�������( '''����������
���1 �/7

7/�2

�����


��� 4/3

���

5�>134

���<

�����
C�����������5���.�	��
����������2��������2����


���������
4/12

���6

����� �72

C����00�5�����.��2��/��������1��	��		����0�.�����

0�.�����0����	.�����������
���2

����4 �7/72 	��
�

��	�

C����.6��	
�&�	������8��	�.�/�&81������������	�

����5��60��.�

����� 412 		�

�3/12 41/�2

4/�2

3�2

4�2

7�2

31/<2

412

4/02 7/02

432

302

��3

<61

���	

���

6�2��� 732

��/6��/�

7/�2

�/�2

�</3

�	�

0/�2

0/32

7/4

1�/<

002 <�2

6/12

���2

5�>66�

032

16/7 00/�

5�>134

1/1

������0��������0�	.���	������C����	������	���

��		�	�.�����/�E.��
�	��L=1
�/7�2 �����

������0�����	�	��	
�
�2������	���.��2�������C�

���������9����
��
�

���

���
�

�/7�/<

����

�/�

%�&����"'(()(" ����"* "*)'*)"'(�
Page 98



������� ����	


�	�������� 
����

������� �������	�

�����	� ������

������� ��		�

����������	�  ��	����!���	

"�����	��	���	#�����#� 
$��%��

���&�'$'"�(()�(*+'

��������	�
����	��
���������	��


����

����

�	��
��
������
��������	��


�,�	�������,���	�����&


-.!/��������������	��

� !"#$#% $
$&" $%

.����( '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����
Page 99



( 4�������-�����	��

$ 
���		�����,,�	

" �����/,,����

+ 5��������,,�	

6 
�3���5���7��8�����

% 83��3����9�����	���

����	��
�
'
(������
)�������	��

����	��
�
'
����	����
�������

:������������	�,��������	����

:����3�����,�3��������
���		�����,,�	��	���

:�,���	���

:�����3��������������

����	��
�
'
������
#�����

����	��
*
'
!�����
�������

����	��
+
'
�	�	�
!����,
-��
�.�	������/
 ��	��

����	��
0
' ����	�1
2

�����	��

��������	��������	�	�����	�,�������������	��������	��������	���������	���	������	��������������,������

���,�������	�����������;

 ����������	�	����<,����	��������/7�����������	���;

���������������������������	�����	�,���(#'''�,,���	�����	���5���7��8���������$'("0(+;

 ��	����������,���������	���������������������	����������	���5��������2�,�	��5���;

���������������������������	�����	�,���(#'''�,,���	���������	�������$'("0(+;

!�������������������;�;������	�����!���	������������	��������	������	�3�	�#������������=���	�����

����	���#�����	������3�������������>������������,�3��������	�������	��;

�����������������������	�������	�������	�����	�,���(#'''�,,���	�����
���		�����,,�	����$'($0("�����

$'("0(+;

 ����������������������	����&

-��	�������	�������<������	�����	����3�3������������������,���������������,,���������������������	���

������	�������������	������������������,,�������������3��;

-��	�������	������,�3�������������������	�����	�<	����	�,��������	���������	�	����	��	���	���

=���	������������������	�������>�,����������������������	���	�,����������������	���	�����;

����,,���	�������������������	����������	����	������	�	������,�	�����	���������	���8������>$'('���	���	��;

((

($

(6

()

)3%$ �4�%) 3

�������,�	���,���������,������������	��	������,�����	���	�����,����������	���	�	���,���;�-	������3�������	�	���

�����������	���;

.���

6

+

.����$ '%0'10$'("2�����	������3���� Page 100



���
�����5

��������������	���������	��������,����������������	�����	�

���		��

����2��������

5�����

8������

8	����2�������

5����� $(���������� $'����������

"$&6#�&

3����� ���

+(���������� $6����������

)����������� ($����������

'

('

$'

"'

+'

6'

%'

)'

*'

1'

('' 3��'���
���		��
' !�����

��	��

?�����	���	�7������
��������	����������

�������,��3���������
�������������@�	���

����

75�����������7���	������	�
��,�����	�����������	����

�<���������	�����������	�
�������������������	����	���

�3�����

75�����������7���	�������	�
��,�����	�@���3��������������

������������	����3�����

�����������,�����	�����
��	���	�7��3����

�������,�	���,�����������	����	��	������,�����	���	�����,����������	���	�	���,���;

�������	�	�����,�	��������������������������	��	����������������,���������;��-����������	������������	�����
��,�	������,��	����,������������,����	���		���������	����	�������������������,�����	�	������	�;

#������5 /���	����������	��������������	����,�����������������	�������,��3�����;�������3���������	���

�������	��������3��������	������,;��������3������3����������������������	�#�����	��	��	������3���<������#�����
���	������������	�����3����������	��������	����������,��������;

�����5  �����,����������������	�����	��������	�����	�������������	�����	�����	�����	�����	�������,���������	���

������3�����������������	���	���������,����3������A�;�;�����������	�#�����3��������	���	��3�������	�;B;����������
��3�����	�	�������<��,�������	�	����,��<,��������	��	�����;

.����" '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 101



�����	�
!�����

�����	�
������


����3�	�3�

�����

��������2�����	

/���	���

%����

���
����
������	��
����
��
�������
�����7

����	������� ����

8���
����
��
�����
���
����
������	��
����7

��������


�3�������


������� ����

����

����

#�����	�	�

���;;

($6

��+

��

#�����	�	� ���

��

���

���

(''C ���

��

���

�&�%) 3
�
'
(&3&$#�
)36 $!#%) 3

��

;; ��

;;

3����� 9 ���

���

���

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

� � � � � 	 < � � � @ �

������

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

� � � � < 	 @ � � � � �

��������	��

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

� � � � � � < @ 	 � � �

#��
�����

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

� @ � � � 	 � � < � � �

�	�����
��������

'C $'C +'C %'C *'C

?��

�

&������
�����7

'C $'C +'C %'C *'C (''C

���������A(B


�3��������A('B


��������A(B

%���
��
!����

.����+ '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 102



���
���
�:���
���;

����<��
���'����

.,���	��

���

�	������	

.���	���

5��	�����

-�

8	������	�

%����
���

>���������

6� D';''

*��� ��

�	
��('$� ��

"*� D';'' �	
	�

�&�%) 3
�
'
� !!)%%&&
�4"" $%

E�0/

=<����

��

= ���

$6*�

)�

��
��

�� �	
	�

�	
	�

';($�������EF/�G�H

�����

D';''

D';6'

D(;''

D(;6'

D$;''

� � � 	 � � � < � � @ �

�����
���


D';''

D';('

D';$'

D';"'

D';+'

D';6'

D';%'

� � � @ 	 < � � � � � �

"�	��	��


D';''

D';6'

D(;''

D(;6'

D$;''

D$;6'

D";''

� � 	 � < � � � @ � � �

%����
���


D';''

D';'6

D';('

D';(6

D';$'

� 	 < @ � � � � � � � �

#��
�����
���


.����6 '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 103



���
���
�:���
���;

����<�*
������

.,���	��

���

�	������	

.���	���

5��	����

-�

8	������	�

%����
���

6%&
	�������	��

!����	���


�	�,���!�� ��

*;*���������

6%&


��

6%&<����

E�0/

��

�	
	�

�	
	�

�� �	
��

D';''

)� ��

>��������� ';'(>�������

���

	
	�

���	�

"$$� �	
��

1'�

+'�

�	
	�

=� =<����

*0>� ��

*�

���

����

D';''

EF/�G�H

D';''

D';6'

D(;''

D(;6'

D$;''

D$;6'

D";''

� � � < @ � � � � � � 	

%����
���


D';''

D';6'

D(;''

D(;6'

D$;''

� � � < � � @ � � � � 	

�����
���


D';''

D';$'

D';+'

D';%'

D';*'

� � � @ � � 	 < � � � �

"�	��	��


D';''

D';'6

D';('

D';(6

D';$'

D';$6

	 � < @ � � � � � � � �

#��
�����
���


';''

';'(

';'$

';'"

';'+

� � � < � � @ � � � � 	

6%&<����
���


D'�

D('�

D$'�

D"'�

D+'�

D6'�

D%'�

� � � � @ � � < � 	 � �

�����
���<6%&


.����% '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 104



!���	��
	�������	��

!���	��
���� 3����� ���

!����
�����

�<���	�3�0
�����	

������	��

I����>J�������

����	���

/����
���		���

8	��������������		���

�������,,����


�,��	�02����	�������

����������3�����5�	�����

.�����9�
�����.����

����	��9� ��������

8	���

%����
����	��

��

>�������������

>�������������

�

�

+)����������

$%)��������

>�������������

��

�

��

��

>�������������

>�������������

>�������������

$6����������

1������������ �


���������

��

�

��

��

��

$*����������

+������������

��

>�������������

'

6

('

(6

� � < � � � � @ 	 � � �

6���
�����	�


'

6'

(''

� � � � � � @ � � < � 	

?��	'@��	�	��


'

$'

+'

@ < 	 � � � � � � � � �

#���
����	����


'

$'

+'

< � � � � 	 � � � � @ �

&A����	��<���	���


'

6'

(''

� � < 	 � � � � � � @ �

�����	��

'

(''

$''

"''

+''

6''

%''

� � 	 � � � � < � � � @

%����
����	��


'

(''

$''

"''

� � � @ � 	 < � � � � �

 ����
������
����	����


'

6'

(''

� � � � < 	 � @ � � � �

 ����



'

$'

+'

%'

� � � � � @ < 	 � � � �

���������<�	������
�����


'

$''

+''

%''

	 � � � � � � @ < � � �

������
������


'

$'

+'

%'

	 @ � � � � � < � � � �

$���������


.����) '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 105



%������
����	��
	�������	��

 1�
#�����	��

!����
�����

�<���	�3�0
�����	

������	��

I����>J�������

����	���

/����
���		���

8	��������������		���

�������,,����


�,��	��5�	02����	�������

����������3�����5�	�����

.�����9�
�����.����

����	��9� ��������

/���	����

%����
����	��

������

�����������

�����������������

 �!�����"#

$��%�&'�(�����

)�"����#

*"����++�����%

,�-�".�"+����++�����%

)�-���%�//���%

��"/�"���0!��1�"����"%2��"(

)-�"�()�"����%0!�2��"(

3�����4�"�+�3����

5����-46�������!

*����-�"%

������������ ���	����������	����������

�� �� ���7�����

& �

�

�

�	��

�

�� �	

&

��

���7���

���� ���7���

��7���

��7��	

�	��

��

��

��

�	

���7����

�

��

�

	

��

��

���7�	�

��7���

%$��������������>����������������

>����������������

>����������������

>����������������

;;

"*$������������

>����������������

>����������������

��

>����������������

>����������������

��

+����������������

��

$%)������������

;;

;;

>���������������� $+��������������

1����������������

$6��������������

;;

%1#)%'�����������

%����
����������
+��

;;

1����������������

>����������������

#����


+��

%����
#�����


����

;;

;;

(#+($#61+������

;;

"*'#6'*���������

(1#%''�����������

;;

+1��������������

;;

$%1#'''���������

+)��������������

>����������������

>����������������>����������������

$*��������������

>����������������

>����������������

;;

;;

�:�0�:���





��

�����

���

>����������������

>����������������

>����������������

+��












;;

1#%+'������������

;;

���7���

���7��	

�7��	

�

������������

����

�		

�7���

�	

)����������������

��

�����������

�

'

















� � �

�����

���

�

�

� 	���������� �������������

.����* '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 106



����	��
����	���
��
����	����
�������

6���
�����	�

����	�� *�!

/		����,��>���	��� ���� ����

.������������� ����

4�3��,�����������3��� ����

5������,����� ����

���������	�� ����

.�	����	��������>�, ����

"�	��	��

"�	��	��
	�������	��


�	���,���	�����������

/������,�����,���	��


�	�,����������,���


�	������	�������,���	�J�

�		�

�		� ����

D((%;6"

���� ���

D';'6

�7���7���

D('$�

�	
	�

$#(%(#('$��

���

����

����

���

�		��		�

�		�

���

���

���� �		�

���

��� ��������

����
	�

*�! *�!

�		�

�		�

����		�

���� ����

��������

�		�

$���������

�������

�������

���� ����

?��	'@��	�	��&A����	��

���

�		�

�		� ����

*�!

����

����

���� ����

�����	��

*�!

���

�������

����

����

����

#���


����	����

*�!

����

����

���

���

����

*�!

���

����

����

����

��

���

���

������

���

����

����

���������


*�!

���� ���

��� ����

������

��

���� ���

����

���

����

����

����

���

���

����		�����

���

���

���

��������� ��������

D'�

D$'�

D+'�

D%'�

D*'�

D(''�

D($'�

� � � @ < � 	 � � � � �

%����
���
��
��	��	��
������


'

6''#'''

(#'''#'''

(#6''#'''

$#'''#'''

$#6''#'''

� � < � � � @ � � � � 	

%����
������
����
��	����


D';''

D';'(

D';'$

D';'"

D';'+

D';'6

D';'%

	 � � @ � � � � � � < �

���
���
������
����
��	����


D'

D6''

D(#'''

D(#6''

D$#'''

D$#6''

D"#'''

� 	 � � � � � < � � � @

���
��
�������
��	��
@��


.����1 '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 107



�	��	���	��
��
#�����

B���
���	�����

!�����
��
�	��	���	�� *�! *�! *�! *�! *�!

�	�����	���

!����������

)��	�	����
���		��

���		��

����2��������

5�����

8������

8	����2�������

5�����

����

���

���

�������

3�����

���

����

��

"��

����

����

���

���

��

>�������������

('"��������

>�������������

�	

���

���

����

�������

���

���� ���

����

����

&��	�
������


3��1���  ����


'

6'

(''

(6'

$''

$6'

"''

"6'

� � � < � 	 � @ � � � �

C��
���		��
' !�����


'

$'

+'

%'

*'

(''

($'

� � � < � 	 � @ � � � �

C��
���		��
'  ��	���


'

$'

+'

%'

*'

(''

($'

� � � � < � @ 	 � � � �

3��'���
���		��
' !�����


.����(' '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 108



����<��
������
���

.,���	��

6%&
	�������	��

�	������	

!����	���


�	�,���!��

#�����

�����	�����3����

8	������������

�<�������

%����
����	���

/�����

�������

8	����������		���

�;������������������

/,,�����,������

=<����

;;

;;

��

��

;;

���

;;

��

;;

;; ��

��

��

;; ��

3�����

;;

�&�%) 3
�
'
��B  �
#""&#��

3����� 9
%���� ���

�
�;;

��
��

E�0/

�	
����

���

���

�
�

���

���

�

�

�	�

	� �������

D';''

D';'6

D';('

D';(6

D';$'

D';$6

D';"'

< � � � � � 	 � � @ � �

�����
���


';'

(;'

$;'

";'

+;'

< � � � � � � 	 � @ � �

6%&
����


'C

6C

('C

(6C

< � � � � 	 � � � � � @

#���1��


D'�

D('�

D$'�

D"'�

D+'�

D6'�

< � � � � � 	 � @ � � �

���<6%&


'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

< � � � 	 @ � � � � � �

$�����


'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

< � � � � � � � @ � � 	

 ����1	�
������


'

$''

+''

%''

*''

(#'''

(#$''

< � � � � � 	 � @ � � �

%����
������
����	���


';'

$;'

+;'

< � � � � 	 � � � @ � �

#�����
���
����

.����(( '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 109



���
���
!�����

����<��
���'����


������5������

.,���	��

���

�	������	

5������	�������

-����,,�	

���3���9�������	����

8	������	�

������/��������

��/7�

%����
���

�$#,

������������3���

��/�,��������3��

EF/�G�H

���

�
 �	��

��

��EF/�G�H

DE#�4&F

���3�����

�&�%) 3
*
'
!&!�&$
�4"" $%

=,�


=<

������


3����� ���

E�0/

���

($6�������� ��

����

��

���

��	7���

��7���

'� D'

$�

(''� D*''

D(%

�
�!"!

���	

$$'� ��7���D(#)%'

(6� D($'

�� ���7	��

;; ��

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

� � � � � < @ � 	 � � �

��	�
����1����
���
������

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

D$'#'''

� � � � � � @ � 	 � < �

�$#
���
������

D'

D6''

D(#'''

D(#6''

	 � � < @ � � � � � � �

 ����
�	����
���

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

D$'#'''

D$6#'''

D"'#'''

� � � � � 	 � @ < � � �

%����
���
���
������


D'

D$#'''

D+#'''

D%#'''

D*#'''

D('#'''

� � � � 	 � < � @ � � �

�����
���

D'

D$''

D+''

D%''

� 	 < � � � � � � @ � �

!�����
���	�	��

D'

D6''

D(#'''

� � 	 � @ � < � � � � �

)%
������

'C

6'C

(''C

� � � � � @ � 	 � � � <

9
!�����
����	�	��
��
�$#


D'

D('#'''

D$'#'''

� � � � � @ � 	 < � � �

�$#
����1����
���
����	���

D'

D$'

D+'

D%'

� � < � 	 @ � � � � � �

%�����
2
���	�����

.����($ '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 110



����	��
$����	�	�	��
#���1����

�$#,


�3���5���

������0����	���5���

2�,�	��������


�����	��������


���		���������

����	����������

����������,,��	��

/���	����

%����

�� ��7���

;;DE#�4&F ��
� ����

EF/�G�H ;;

;;

;;EF/�G�H

EF/�G�H

EF/�G�H

;;EF/�G�H

;;

;;

��7���

��7���

��

��

���7��	

���7�		��

���7�����

��

;; �� ���7���

���7�	�


%����

=,���


��EF/�G�H

���


#������


����1����



3�;


����	�	��


EF/�G�H

EF/�G�H

EF/�G�H

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

D$'#'''

D$6#'''

� � � � � � < � 	 @ � �

������
��
����	�	��

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

� � � � @ 	 � � � < � �

#��
�����

D'

D('#'''

D$'#'''

D"'#'''

D+'#'''

D6'#'''

	 � � � � � @ � < � � �

������
������

D'

D6'#'''

D(''#'''

� � � � � � � 	 @ � � <

������<&������
!����

D'

D('#'''

D$'#'''

D"'#'''

D+'#'''

@ � � � � � 	 � < � � �

���	���
������

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

D$'#'''

� @ � � � � < � � 	 � �

����	����
���	�

D'

D6#'''

D('#'''

D(6#'''

D$'#'''

D$6#'''

� � � � � @ < � � 	 � �

�����	��
���	�

D'

D$'#'''

D+'#'''

D%'#'''

� � � � @ 	 � � � < � �

�	�	�
!����

.����(" '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 111



�������
"���	���
��
!�����

����	�� *�!


���>���

2��������������	

���������,����

�,����� ��	���

���3�������������	�

���������9���3��,���	

/����������,����	����

.���������,�������		���

����'

�������

&A����	��
<


���	���

�	�	�
!����
<


���	����

 ���	�	��


������

&������
!����
<


�����	�
������

����	� ����

*�! *�! *�! *�!

����

���� ��� ��� ��������

���� ��� ���� ���

����

��� ���� ��� ����

������� ��� ����

����	� ����

��� ���� ���

���

���

��� ����

���

��

��� ����

����

����

��� ���� ���

���

����

���

���

���

�	�

���

�������

	�

���� ���

���

����

���� ���� �	�

����

����

����

����

����

���� ����

����

����

���

���

���

���

����

����

���

���

����

����

����

���

����

.����(+ '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 112



'

���
���
�:���
���

����<�*
��	����

.,���	��

���

�	������	

5���7�������	

2�,�	������7�������	


�3����3��	�

5���7�����

8	������	�

%����
���

�����

!����	���


�	�,���!�� �� ��
��

����

�
�>�����������

���

��

��

��

��

�	
	�

��

�	
��

�	
	�

� ���

�� �� �	
		

��

��

�&�%) 3
+
'
�)E)�
!#G $,�
- $
&?4)E#�&3%/
 66)�&

=� =<���� ���

E�0/

��

�	
	�

��

�	
	�

��

D';''

D';('

D';$'

D';"'

D';+'

D';6'

D';%'

� � � � � � 	 � � < @ �

�����
���

D'�

D$'�

D+'�

D%'�

� � � � � � < � @ � � 	

���<6%&

';'

(;'

$;'

";'

+;'

	 < � � � � @ � � � � �

6%&
�����

D';''

D';'$

D';'+

� � � � � < @ 	 � � � �

������
�����,
������

D';''

D';('

D';$'

� � � � � @ 	 � � � � <

!����,
���

D';''

D';'6

� � � � � � 	 < @ � � �

�	�	�
�����

D';''

D';'(

D';'$

D';'"

D';'+

D';'6

D';'%

D';')

� � � � � � 	 � @ < � �

 ����
�	����
���

D'�

D6'�

D(''�

D(6'�

� � � � � < � 	 � � @ �

�����
���

D';''

D';$'

D';+'

D';%'

D';*'

� � � � � � @ 	 � < � �

���
���
����
���

D';''

D';'6

D';('

D';(6

D';$'

� � � � � @ < � � � � 	

!����,
������

.����(6 '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 113



'

&���������
'
����<��
���	�	���
����


&���������

5���

2�,�	��5��� �/ ��

�/ ���

3����� ���

'

(''

$''

"''

+''

6''

%''

� � � � < � � 	 � @ � �

!����

'

$'

+'

%'

*'

(''

($'

(+'

� � � � � � 	 � @ � < �

������
�����

.����(% '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

P
age 114



���
���
�:���
���

����<�*
������

.,���	��

���

�	������	

8	��������	���������	

%����
���

6%&
)�������	��

�����
	�������	��

!����	���

2�����	�������	����8�������


�	�,���!��

2�����	�������	����8��������0�!��

�
�

�;��

;;

��

�&�%) 3
0
'
 E&$E)&8
2
��$4%)3G

E�0/

=<���� ���

�� �	
	�

�	
��';'� ��

� �!
��

��

��
����

���

;; �
�

	
��

';'

(;'

$;'

";'

+;'

6;'

%;'

@ � 	 < � � � � � � � �

6%&
�����

D'�

D('�

D$'�

D"'�

D+'�

D6'�

D%'�

@ � � � � < � � � 	 � �

���<6%&

D';''

D';$'

D';+'

D';%'

D';*'

D(;''

D(;$'

@ � 	 � � � < � � � � �

%����
���

D';''

D';$'

D';+'

D';%'

D';*'

D(;''

@ � � � � 	 < � � � � �

�����
���

D';''

D';'6

D';('

D';(6

D';$'

D';$6

@ � � � � � 	 � � � < �

 ����
����	��
������

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

@ � � � � � � 	 � < � �

���	�����
�����	��
 ��	���

.����() '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 115



#������	��
��
6%&
��
���	�	��

#������	��
��
����
�	��
��
���	�	��

��������

 ���,�������

�	������0�	�	�	��0,����������	���

8	����5���������	����

.�����������	�	��

����	����	�������

8	�������	����

2���	������3������,�	�

.������	�

5���;�����	����=������

/���	���

��
����

�	
��

9 ���

��

�� �
��

��

��

�� ��
��

�	
��

�
��

��

�
��

��

�
��

��

�
��

�
��

�� �
��

��

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

@ � � � � � � < 	 � � �

$������

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

"'C

@ � � 	 � < � � � � � �

8���
���������

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

@ � � � � � � � � 	 � <

�����	��<��������<����	�
�����	��


����	��

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

"'C

@ � � < 	 � � � � � � �

 ����
!�����
����	��

'C

$C

+C

%C

*C

('C

($C

@ � < 	 � � � � � � � �

"���	�
��������	��

'C

$C

+C

%C

*C

('C

($C

@ � � 	 � � � � � < � �

�����	��
���	�	��

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

@ � < 	 � � � � � � � �

 ����
����	��

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

@ � � � 	 � � � < � � �

�����	��
���	�1
������

'C

$C

+C

%C

*C

('C

($C

@ 	 � � � < � � � � � �

"���	�	��

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

@ 	 � � � < � � � � � �

!	�;
�����	��
.���	�

.����(* '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 116



�����	��
�����	��
�	��
2
������
��
���	�	��

%	��
2
������
��
���	�	��


���>���


�������������������	��

.�������3��,���	

.��>�����������3��

.������������3����

���3������3����

/��������,�	�

 ���,�������

8	��� ��

�� �	
��

�� ��
��

�� �
��

���

��
��

�� �
	�

�	
��

��

9

��

��

�	
��

��
��

�� �
��

'C

$C

+C

%C

*C

('C

($C

@ � < � � 	 � � � � � �

����'	�

'C

6C

('C

(6C

@ � < � � 	 � � � � � �

�����	����
����
���
���	��

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

6'C

@ � � � 	 � � � � < � �

"��	��
�����������

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

"'C

@ � � � � < � � � 	 � �

"��'���		��
�����

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

$6C

"'C

@ � � < 	 � � � � � � �

"����������
���	�1

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

6'C

%'C

@ � � � � < 	 � � � � �

����	��
���	�1

'C

6C

('C

(6C

$'C

@ � � � � 	 � � � � < �

#�����
������

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

6'C

%'C

@ � � � 	 � � � � � � <

8���
���������

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

6'C

%'C

@ � � � 	 < � � � � � �

 ����

.����(1 '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 117



������
��
������
��
�����	��
�����	��

������
��
�������

����	����8�������


���		�����,,�	�8�������

2�,��	���	���8�������

8	����8�������

����	���5������

#��	�	����
1�������
	�������	��

8�������

��,�	����,��	������$'($0("


�������������������	��

��=���	��0������	����������	����
���		��0
�������

��=���	��0������	������
�����	

��=���	��0������	������
��������,��	���	�

-	����������	������,������9��<	�������������	���

8	���

%����

����	������3����

-�>��,	����3����������	����

������������������	���

C����������	��������,	��

C����������	������,�����	������($���	��


���>���

�	�������>���

�;���������������	��������>�����

�;�����������	�����������������

9 ���

	

���

��;;

;;

��

�� ��
	�

�� �
��

�� �
��

;; ��

�

;;

;;

��

;; 	

;; ��

�

���;;

�;;

�

�;;

���

� ��"����

�;;

;;

;;

;;

��
��

��
��

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

@ � � � < � � 	 � � � �

�����	��
 ��	���

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

6'C

@ � � � � � � 	 � < � �

������������
 ��	���

'C

$'C

+'C

%'C

*'C

(''C

($'C

@ � � � � < � 	 � � � �

����	����
�������
 ��	���

'C

(C

$C

"C

+C

6C

%C

@ � � � < 	 � � � � � �

 ����
 ��	���

'C

('C

$'C

"'C

+'C

@ � 	 � � < � � � � � �

&������
!�����

.����$' '%0'10$'("2�����	������3����

Page 118



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	



�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�	



�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��


	

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
	



�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	



�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��


	

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
	



�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	

�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�


�	
�
�
�	


�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
� 
��
!

"
#
$
 

%
&%

'
&(

)
&$

%
&(

*
$
&+
%

*
$
&%
+

*
$
&#
,

(
"

*
"
#
-%
)
(

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

)
(
+
 

'
&.

,
&)

)
&(

&&
*
$
&#
+

*
$
&(
%

*
$
&$
%

,
%

*
)
,
-(
(
"

�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�	
/
�
�
�
�
�

0
�
12

+
&(

,
&$

�
2

&&
�
�

�
�

�
�

"
)
(

*
)
-,
.
,

3
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
'
,
 

,
&#

"
&#

$
&$

"
&+

*
$
&(
,

�
�

*
$
&)
"

+
$

*
)
)
-+
(
"

�
�

4
�
�
��
�
��

%
"
)
 

#
&"

'
&'

%
&$

'
&.

*
"
&"
%

*
$
&%
%

*
$
&+
)

,
%

*
"
.
-$
)
(

�
�

 
5
�
�


��
!
��
�

"
+
$
 

(
&#

,
&'

&&
)
&,

*
"
&%
.

�
�

*
$
&#
"

(
'

*
)
,
-#
.
$

�
�



/
�
�
�
�
��

)
#
(
 

+
&'

"
$
&#

)
&,

%
&"

*
"
&"
$

*
$
&%
'

*
$
&,
"

,
%

*
)
#
-)
+
(

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

)
'
$
 

,
&+

"
&$

$
&$

'
&,

*
"
&$
$

�
�

*
$
&#
.

,
"

*
)
$
-(
.
+

3
�



�
6
��
�
�
�
�
�

"
.
"
 

'
&(

'
&"

)
&(

)
&)

*
$
&+
%

*
$
&'
$

*
$
&'
%

(
'

*
"
(
-,
$
,

�
�

7
8
�
��
�
�

"
.
'
 

'
&"

%
&"

"
&,

&&
*
$
&.
#

*
$
&%
"

�
�

(
'

*
"
.
-(
.
%

�
�

�
9
�
�
�
�	
:
�
�
��
�


)
%
#
 

#
&'

&&
&&

"
&,

*
"
&'
#

*
$
&"
%

*
$
&)
.

(
"

*
)
%
-$
,
.

3
�



�
;
�
��
�
�
�
	<
�
��


�

)
)
+
 

+
&+

&&
%
&+

'
&$

*
$
&%
(

*
$
&%
+

*
$
&#
$

,
$

*
)
"
-"
$
(

�
�

�
=�
<
2
	�
�


	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�

	�
�
��
	�


	�
4
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�	
8
�
�
��
�
�


	'
"
	�
�
�
	'
%
>)
?	
�
�	
��
�
	<
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�	
=�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	2
�
�&
	@
�

�
��


�
��
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
=�
<
2
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
A�
�
��
�
	�
=�
<
2
�

	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��


�

&	
	�
��
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�	
�


	�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�


��
!
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
&

�
��
�


�
	�
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�

	�
�
!
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�	


�
�
�
	�
�	
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
��

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
!
�
�


&


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
!
�

��
��
�"
�
	



��
��
��
�
!
�#
$�
�
�
�%
�
%
��
�
�
�
#
�
&

@
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	8
�
��
��
�



�
�
!
�
	"

$
,
1$
.
1)
$
"
%

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Efficiency and Performance Sub Committee  6 November 2013 

Subject:  

Supplies and Services and Third Party Payments 

 

Public 

Report of: 

Chamberlain 

For Information 

 

 
Summary 
The City of London utilises the CIPFA categorisation of expenditure and income for 
all transactions recorded in the City’s accounts. Two of these classifications are 
Supplies and Services and Third Party Payments for which ‘themed’ efficiency 
review exercises have been undertaken.  

Supplies and Services 
Total annual expenditure within this category of expenditure is in the region of 
£125.7million (2011/12). A large area of supplies and services expenditure has 
been included within the PP2P project review. Other significant areas of spend have 
been or are being addressed by other projects, including the IS Strategy Review, 
and the Police City First Project. There are, however, a number of areas that were 
identified for further analysis. Professional Fees (£10.7million); Management Fees 
(£5.9million); Consultancy Fees (£4.8million) are being reviewed by the CLPS 
sourcing team. Research/Advice/Information (£877,000); and Hospitality (£1m) and 
Subscriptions (£1.5 million) are being reviewed by internal audit. 
 
Third Party Payments 
A review of Third Party Payments was reported to this Committee at the 8th May 
2013 meeting. This exercise involved an examination of transactions posted to 
CBIS for the three year period 1st April 2009 to 31st March 2012. The total value of 
payments made over this period is in the region of £104.5million which includes 
payments of £22.2million over three years in respect of the City’s grant to the 
Museum of London. 

 
It was concluded that the majority of spend on services covered by these payments 
over the last three years has been or will be subject to review via the PP2P project, 
contract renewal negotiations, DCCS Commissioning Strategy, budget and policy 
initiative reviews, is mandatory in nature, or is recoverable. The remaining 
payments with a value of £5.5million over three years have been agreed for more 
detailed examination which is on-going.  
 
The results of the on-going reviews are expected to be reported to this sub-
Committee in the New Year. 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note this report. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 121



Main Report 

 
Background 

 
1. At the April 2012 meeting of the Efficiency & Performance sub-Committee it 

was decided that departmental scrutiny exercises on a rolling basis would be 
discontinued and replaced by ‘themed’ reviews, although the option for 
Members to request reports from Chief Officers concerning value for money 
provided by their services would remain. 

 
2. The City of London utilises the CIPFA categorisation of expenditure and income 

for all transactions recorded in the City’s accounts. Two of these classifications 
are Supplies and Services and Third Party Payments for which ‘themed’ review 
exercises have been undertaken.  

 
Supplies and Services 
 
3. The CIPFA definition for supplies and services is procurement from external 

organisations of consumable items, which can be on a contract basis but are 
distinct from contracts for specific service delivery. For example, the corporate 
office supplies contract is posted to Supplies and Services, whereas the 
contract for waste disposal is posted to Third Party Payments. Other 
procurement classified as supplies and services includes professional fees and 
consultancy fees; this is because the work undertaken by these suppliers is 
concerned with system development, or specialist advice and not service 
delivery. 

 
4. An initial analysis of Supplies and Services expenditure for the financial year 

2011/12 was undertaken so that an indication could be obtained of the typical 
annual level of spend. It was ascertained that total annual expenditure was in 
the region of £125.7million. Table One below shows the largest top 20 
spending Departments for supplies and services expenditure (actual spend).  

 
  

Page 122



Table One: Top 20 Departmental Supplies and Services Expenditure 2011/12 
(Actual) 

 
Department Actual 
 £000 
  
Barbican Centre 24,091 
The City Bridge Trust 20,363 
City Police 19,113 
Chamberlain's Department 5,377 
Guildhall School of Music & Drama 5,116 
Policy & Resources  4,737 
Investment Properties (City's Cash) 4,253 
City of London Freemen's School 3,384 
Port Health & Environmental Services 2,926 
City of London School 2,391 
Culture, Heritage & Libraries 2,153 
Planning & Transportation 2,110 
DCCS - Social Services & Education 2,032 
City of London School for Girls 2,032 
Grants, Contingencies and Miscellaneous 2,011 
DCCS - Housing & Community Services 1,978 
City Academies 1,605 
Investment Properties (City Fund) 1,579 
Court of Alderman 1,410 
Hampstead Heath 1,027 
Bridge House Estates 1,020 
Smithfield Market 1,000 
Epping Forest  900 
Town Clerk's   842 
Tower Bridge Tourism 814 
Total Other Departments 11,393 
Total 125,657 

 
5. It can be seen from Table One that the Barbican Centre expenditure on 

Supplies and Services is the highest with an actual figure of £25million on 
2011/12. This table shows gross expenditure and does not reflect any recharge 
for external events or taken account of income from events. The City Bridge 
Trust expenditure includes the amount given as grants.  

 
6. Further analysis of expenditure into type was made. It will be appreciated that 

there are approximately 100 subjective codes for supplies and services, 
therefore, a sample of these was analysed in more detail, based on the level of 
overall corporate spend. The results of this exercise are contained in Table Two 
below, along with the status of any relevant efficiency review activity. 

 

Page 123



Table Two: Sample of Subjective Supplies and Services Spending 2011/12 

Subjective Description 
 

Actual 
£000 

 
Comments 

Grants to Voluntary and Other Organisations 47,317 Area subject to separate efficiency review of grants. 
Professional Fees 10,688 More detailed analysis of this area by the CLPS Sourcing Support Team. 
Management Fees 5,877 More detailed analysis of this area by the CLPS Sourcing Support Team. 
Consultants Fees 4,766 More detailed analysis of this area by the CLPS Sourcing Support Team 
Equipment Purchase/General 3,207 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project. 
Security 3,021 This spend has been examined as part of the PP2P project. 
Provisions 1,870 The CLPS now involved in sourcing of future requirements. 
Subscriptions 1,500 Payments to professional journals/information services subject to internal 

audit analytical review 
Printing 1,207 Currently being reviewed by the Soft FM category board. 
Computer Hardware Purchase/Hire 1,169 Part of the IS Strategy Project Review 
Hardware Maintenance and Support 1,062 Part of the IS Strategy Project Review 
Telephones 1,055 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project. 
Hospitality 1,010 Mainly via petty cash and procurement cards. Subject to internal audit 

review. 
Subsistence 993 Mainly via petty cash and procurement cards 
Research/Advice/Information 877 Payments subject to internal audit efficiency review 
Software Purchase/Hire 794 Part of the IS Strategy Project Review 
Equipment Maintenance 761 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project 
Postage 595 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project 
Conference Expenses 588 A more detailed analysis of this area is warranted. 
Equipment Hire 495 The CLPS now involved in sourcing of future requirements. 
Photocopiers 474 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project 
Mobile Phones 452 This spend has been examined via the PP2P project 
Stationery 437 This spend has been examined via the PP2P project 
General Office Expenses 371 The CLPS now involved in sourcing future requirements. 
Furniture Purchase/General 226 This spend has or is being examined via the PP2P project 
Newspapers and Periodicals 119 The CLPS will be involved in sourcing in future. 

P
age 124



 
Supplies and Services Areas identified for more Detailed Analysis 
 
7. The analysis shown in Table Two identified a number of areas where greater 

analysis was warranted in order to obtain a more detailed understanding of 
current expenditure patterns. Three of these areas related to expenditure which 
would be covered by the new CLPS Sourcing Support Team and therefore 
future purchasing decisions will be subject to on-going efficiency review and 
scrutiny as follows:- 

.  
• Professional Fees (£10.7million in 2011/12) – cursory examination of 

transactions suggests that departments may be coding a range of expenditure 
to this subjective that are not being correctly posted. For example, payments to 
Office Depot Ltd., the Carphone Warehouse and Yahoo.co. 

 

• Management Fees (£5.9million in 2011/12)  - this subjective heading includes 
payments for contract management including catering and housekeeping 
services, but it also includes payments to individuals, so there may be a 
confusion between the posting of consultancy payments here rather than the 
correct subjective for consultancy type review work. 

 

• Consultants Fees (£4.7million 2011/12) – this is an area of spend that previous 
Internal Audit work has often revealed to be problematic in terms of compliance 
with Standing Orders, definition of what constitutes consultancy rather than 
contract management, and the difference between advising on the “shape” of a 
service rather than providing the service. 

 
8. The following three areas were identified for internal audit efficiency 

analysis. Work on these areas in on-going and is nearing completion. 
 

• Subscriptions (£1.5million 2011/12) – City departments subscribe to a wide 
variety of journals, periodical publications and academic materials. A corporate 
criteria for making such subscriptions does not currently exist and might lead to 
more efficient procurement in this area of spend. 

 

• Hospitality (£1million 2011/12) – most expenditure is via expense claims and 
paid in cash or via procurement cards. There is specific guidance concerning 
when hospitality provided to visitors and staff can be refunded to officers, but 
control is subject to line management approval which may not be consistently 
robust across the City’s departments. 

 

• Research/Advice/Information (£887,000 2011/12) – initial examination of 
transactions has revealed that this subjective is used to post payments to 
consultants, management agencies, as well as professional bodies. It is, 
therefore likely that some confusion exists concerning the correct usage of this 
subjective.  

 
 
 

Page 125



Analysis of Supplies and Services Expenditure in terms of current review 
processes 
 
9. From the details of spending on subjective areas shown in Table Two above, an 

analysis of 2011/12 value spending in terms of inclusion in current efficiency 
activities was undertaken, including PP2P; the IS Strategy Review and the 
departmental scrutiny exercises. The results of this analysis are contained in 
Table Three. 

 
Table Three: Current Supplies & Services Review Position 
 

Current Review Activity £000 £000 

Grants to Vol. & Other Organisations          47,317  
PP2P Projects          10,228  
CLPS future sourcing (Assisted Buying 
Team) 

         39,152  

IS Strategy            3,025  
Soft FM category board review of Printing            1,207  

            100,929 
Detailed Scrutiny Areas   
Professional Fees (CLPS Sourcing 
Support Team) 

         10,688  

Management Fees (CLPS Sourcing 
Support Team) 

           5,877  

Consultants Fees (CLPS Sourcing Support 
Team) 

           4,766  

Hospitality (Internal Audit review)            1,010  
Subscriptions (Internal Audit review)            1,500  
Research/Advice/Information (Internal 
Audit review) 

              887  

              24,728 
 

Total            125,657 

 
Third Party Payments 

 
10. The classification of Third Party Payments is services which the City is 

responsible to provide, for example, Council Tax collection, that are 
being provided by an external body, usually via a contract or 
partnership agreement. An initial high-level examination of Third Party 
Payments was made; this involved analysing transactions posted in 
CBIS by each City department into specific areas of spend, for 
example, Private Contractors; specific service providers and the value 
of payments made to them were identified; the justification for making 
the payments was obtained from Heads of Finance and service 
managers; the existence of current or planned review activity was 
ascertained; and any further examination of spend not included in 
current scrutiny exercises was considered. 
 

Page 126



11. A review of Third Party Payments was reported to this Committee at 
the 8th May 2013 meeting. This exercise involved an examination of 
transactions posted to CBIS for the three year period 1st April 2009 to 
31st March 2012. The total value of payments made over this period is 
in the region of £104.5million which includes payments of £22.2million 
over three years in respect of the City’s grant to the Museum of 
London. 

 
12. The review concluded that the majority of spend on services covered 

by these payments over the last three years have been or will be 
subject to review via the PP2P project, contract renewal negotiations, 
DCCS Commissioning Strategy, budget and policy initiative reviews, 
are mandatory in nature, or are recoverable. The remaining payments 
with a value of £5.5million over three years have been agreed for more 
detailed examination. Work on these areas is on-going and will be 
reported back to the January EPSC when it is expected this work will 
be completed.  

 
13. Those areas which will be subject to further work are detailed in Table 

4. It should be noted that the values of payments are indicative of the 
level of expenditure incurred during the three year period examined. 
Whilst they are based on total postings to Third Party Payment 
subjective headings in CBIS they are not intended to reflect actual 
expenditure shown in the City’s accounts.  

 
Table Four: Details of Third Party Payment areas subject to further 

review work 
 

Review Area Indicative 
Payments 
£000 

Total £000 

Forensic Services (CoLP) 1,400  

Other Local Authorities 900  

Winter Works 100  

To be reviewed by the 
Director of Business 
Support 

 2,400 

Voluntary Associations           300  

To be reviewed by the 
Director of Financial 
Services 

 300 

Inter- Authority Recoupment           700  

Other Bodies – Adult 
Education 

          2,100  

To be reviewed by Internal 
Audit 

     2,800 

Total further review work      5,500 

 
 
 

Page 127



Conclusion 
 
14. Scrutiny of Supplies and Services expenditure has been explored in 

great detail. Expenditure of £24.7million in total has been identified for 
further examination which includes: Professional, Management, 
Consultants Fees (£21.3million); Hospitality (£1million); Subscriptions 
(£1.5million); and Research/Advice/Information (£887k). (See Table 3). 

 
15. The review of Third Party Payments concluded that the majority of 

spend on services covered by these payments over the last three years 
have been or will be subject to review via the PP2P project, contract 
renewal negotiations, DCCS Commissioning Strategy, budget and 
policy initiative reviews, are mandatory in nature, or are recoverable. 
The remaining payments with a value of £5.5million over three years 
were agreed for more detailed examination – Table 4.  

 
16. Work on the areas of additional scrutiny identified from both the 

Supplies and Services review and Third Party Payments are on-going 
and are expected to be completed and reported back to the sub-
Committee in the New Year. 

 
 
 
Paul Nagle 
T: 020 7332 1277 
E: paul.nagle@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 128



Agenda Item 11

Page 129

Document is Restricted



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 145

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 146

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Outstanding issues
	EPSC Outstanding actions D

	5 Transformation and Efficiency Boards update
	TE Boards XIIII appendix 1
	TE Boards XIIII appendix 2

	6 CIPFA VFM indicators 2011/12
	Appendix A - CIPFA_VFM Finance
	Appendix B - CIPFA_VFM Legal
	Appendix C - CIPFA_VFM HR
	Appendix D1 - CIPFA_Democratic Services
	Appendix D2 - CIPFA_Democratic Services

	7 Supplies and Services and Third Party Payments
	11 Non-public minutes of the previous meeting
	12 Staff Costs Charged to Projects
	Appendix A - Project Budget Sample
	Appendix B - Built Environment Direct and Overhead Calculation 2011-12
	Appendix C - Audit Commission Extract


